

An Agreement Between the

Aromas-San Juan Unified School District

And

Aromas/San Juan Teachers Association

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2024

Table of Contents

Table	of Contents	2
ARTIC	CLE 1 - AGREEMENT	6
ARTIC	CLE 2 - RECOGNITION	7
ARTIC	CLE 3 - ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	8
3.1	Dues Deduction	8
ARTIC	CLE 4 - RIGHTS	9
4.1	District Rights	9
4.2	Association Rights	9
4.3	New Bargaining Unit Member Orientation	10
ARTIC	CLE 5 - COMPENSATION	11
5.1	Compensation	11
5.2	Initial Placement	11
5.3	Advancement	11
5.4	Payment Schedule	13
5.5	Professional Certification Stipends	13
5.6	Salary Underpayment	14
<i>5.7</i>	Salary Overpayment	14
5.8	ExtraDuty/CoachingCompensationDisbursement	14
5.9	Mileage	15
5.10	Claim Payments	15
ARTIC	CLE 6 - ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENT	16
6.1	Rights and Procedures	16
6.2	Definitions	16
6.3	Vacancies	16
6.4	Voluntary Reassignment— A reassignment initiated by the unit member	18
6.5	Involuntary Reassignment — A reassignment initiated by the site/district administrators	18
6.6	Voluntary Transfer — A transfer initiated by the unit member	19
6.7	Involuntary Transfer – A transfer initiated by the Site/District Administrator	20
6.8	Notification of Assignment	21
6.9	Seniority	21
6.10	Voluntary transfer/reassignment after the school year begins	22
6.11	Classroom Relocation	22
ARTIC	CLE7-WORK PRESERVATION/REDUCTION IN FORCE/SUBCONTRACTING	23
7.1	Dismissed Pursuant to Education Code	23
7.2	Layoff Notices	23
7.3	Rehire of Unit Members	23
ARTIC	CLE 8 - PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW	25

8.1	ProgramComponents	25
8.2	Peer Assistance and Review Panel	25
8.3	ConsultingTeachers	26
8.4	Referred Teacher Program	27
8.5	Referred Teacher Rights	29
8.6	Beginning Teacher Program	30
8.7	Miscellaneous Provisions	30
8.8	Governing Board Review of Recommendations by Panel	30
8.9	Retention of Education Rights	30
8.10	Defense and Indemnification	31
8.11	Non-Management/Supervisory Status	31
8.12	Association Representation	31
ARTICL	LE 9 - PROFESSIONAL RIGHTS	32
9.1	EvaluationProcedure	32
9.2	California Standards for the Teaching Profession	35
9.3	Personnel Files	35
9.4	Public Complaints	36
9.5	Teaching Conditions	37
ARTICL	LE 10 - DISCIPLINE	38
10.1	Purpose Teaching Conditions	38
10.2	Progressive Discipline Teaching Conditions	
10.2.1	Verbal Counseling/Warning Teaching Conditions	
10.2.2	y y	
10.2.3 10.2.4	5 -	
10.2.4 10.3	Suspension Without Pay Teaching Conditions Notice of Suspension Teaching Conditions	
10.3 10.4	Appeal	
10.5	Confidentiality	
10.6	Association Representation	
10.7	Educational Code	
ARTICL	LE 11 - HOURS AND ADJUNCT DUTIES	41
11.1	Length of Workday	41
11.2	Adjunct Duties	42
11.3	Preparation Time	43
11.4	Individualized Educational Programs (IEPs)	44
11.5	Work Year	44
11.6	Substitute Shortage	44
11.7	Miscellaneous	
11.8	High School Grad Ex Program	
-		

12.1	Safe Working Conditions	46
12.2	Bodily Harm	46
12.3	Short Term Pupil Suspension	47
12.4	Longer Term Pupil Suspension	48
12.5	Parent/Guardian Involvement and Information	48
12.6	Pupil Transportation	49
ARTICLE	13-LEAVES	50
13.1	General Provisions	50
13.2	Sick Leave	50
13.3	Catastrophic Sick Leave	52
13.4	Bereavement Leave	55
13.5	Pregnancy Disability Leave	55
13.6	Maternity/Paternity Leave	56
13.7	Childbirth/Adoption Leave	56
13.8	Child Care Leave	56
13.9	Professional and Service Leaves / Teacher on Special Assignment	56
13.10	Overseas Teaching Leave	57
13.11	Sabbatical Leaves	57
13.12	Judicial Leave	57
13.13	Business and Conferences	58
13.14	Military Leave	58
13.15	Religious Holidays and Observance	58
13.16	Leave for Medical Examinations Required by the District	58
13.17	Quarantine	59
13.18	Association Leave (Released Time)	59
13.19	Additional Leaves of Absence	59
ARTICLE	14-PART-TIME TEACHING AND SHARED CONTRACTS	60
14.1	General Provisions	60
14.2	Part-Time and Shared Teaching Contract	61
14.3	Conditions	61
ARTICLE	15 - FRINGE BENEFITS	63
15.1	Health, Dental and Vision Coverage	63
15.2	Retired and On Leave Unit Members	64
15.3	Duration of Benefits	65
ARTICLE	16-GRIEVANCES	66
16.1	Definitions	66
16.2	Procedure	66

16.2.1	Level One Informal Grievance	.66
16.2.2	Level Two Principal	.66
16.2.3	Level Three Superintendent	.67
16.2.4	Level Four Board of Trustees	.67
16.2.5	Level Five Mediation	.67
16.2.6	Level Six Binding Arbitration	.68
16.3	Time Limits	.68
16.4	Rights of Representation	.69
16.5	No Reprisals	.69
16.6	Miscellaneous	.69
16.7	Expedited Arbitration	.70
ARTICLE 1	17 - CLASS SIZE	.71
17.1	Class Size Maximums	.71
17.2	TK-8 School Class Configuration	.71
ARTICLE 1	18-PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	.73
18.1	Individual Professional Development Day	74
18.2	Professional Development Committee	74
ARTICLE 19 - SUMMER SCHOOL		
ARTICLE 2	20 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	.76
APPENDI	X A – CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE	.77
APPENDI	XA – CERTIFICATED SALARYSCHEDULE - CONTINUED	.78
APPENDI	X A - SPEECH & LANGUAGE SALARY SCHEDULE	.79
APPENDI	X B - STIPEND SCHEDULE EXTRA DUTY	80
APPENDI	X C - UNIT APPROVAL FORM	81
APPENDI	X D – INDIVIDUAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT DAY (PD)	.82
APPENDI	XE-PROFESSIONAL PARTNERS	.83
APPENDI	XE-PROFESSIONAL PARTNERS CONTINUED	.84
APPENDI	X F—TEACHER EVALUATION	.85
APPENDI	XG-CALIFORNIA STANDARDS FORTHE TEACHING PROFESSION	90
APPENDI	XH – DISTRICT OWNED VEHICLES	91
APPENDI	XI – ADVANCED APPROVAL FORM	.93
APPENDI	XJ- CERTIFICATED GRIEVANCE FORM	94
APPENDI	XK—CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK DONATION FORM	.95
APPENDI	XL-CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANKREQUEST FOR WITHDRAWALFORM	96
	X M – CLASSROOM OBSERVATION REPORT	

ARTICLE 1-AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Board of Trustees of the Aromas-San Juan Unified School District, which together with its administrative staff and representatives shall be referred to in this Agreement as the "District" and the Aromas/San Juan Teachers Association, CTA/NEA, the certificated employees' exclusive representative, which together with its officers and representatives shall be referred to in this Agreement as the "Association."

1.2 Severability

- 1.2.1 If any provisions of this agreement are held to be contrary to law by final decision of a court or administrative agency, such provisions will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.
- 1.2.2 Within ten (10) days of receipt of notification of a court's decision, the District and the Association shall meet and renegotiate the affected portions of the agreement.
- 1.3 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549 of the Government Code which shall be referred to as the "EERA" (Educational Employees Relations Act).
- 1.4 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024.
- 1.5 Any individual contract between the District and a unit member shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

- 2.1 In accordance with the Public Employment Relations Board's "Certificate of Representation," the Bargaining Unit shall include all certificated classroom teachers, specialist teachers (i.e. home independent study, physical education, art, music, resource teachers, and other certificated personnel involved in the teaching of students) in the Aromas-San Juan Unified School District (Hereinafter referred to as the "District"), excluding supervisory, management, confidential, and substitutes employed by the District.
- 2.2 The parties to this Agreement recognize that the duties and work performed by the certificated employees in the bargaining unit described above shall be performed by unit members and shall not be subcontracted or otherwise transferred out of the bargaining unit, with the exception of specialized services for individual students.

ARTICLE 3 - ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY

3.1 Dues Deduction

- 3.1.1 The right of payroll deduction for payment of membership dues and general assessments shall be accorded exclusively to the Association. The District shall deduct other voluntary payments as authorized by unit members and the Association. Association members who currently have authorization cards on file for the above purposes need not be resolicited. Membership dues and general assessments, upon formal written request from the Association to the District, shall be increased or decreased without re-solicitation and authorization from unit members.
- 3.1.2 The Association President or membership chair shall deliver to the District an assignment authorizing deduction of membership dues and general assessments of the Association. Pursuant to such authorization, the District shall deduct one-tenth (1/10) of such dues from the regular salary check of the unit member each month for ten (10) months. Deductions for unit members who sign such authorization after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately prorated from their date of hire.

ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS

4.1 District Rights

4.1.1 The exercise of power, rights, duties and responsibilities, the adoption of policies, rules, and regulations, and the use of judgment and discretion by the District, its Board of Trustees, and its designees, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with the laws of the State of California. Further, the District retains all its power and authority to take on any matter in the event of an emergency. An emergency is defined as a sudden, unforeseen situation that is caused by factors beyond the control of the District and which requires immediate action to avoid disaster. Any alleged violation of this provision may be grieved directly at the Superintendent Level 3 of the grievance procedure of this Agreement.

4.2 Association Rights

The Association shall have the right to:

- 4.2.1 Use school facilities to meet with unit members before and after school hours and during lunch.
- 4.2.2 Be granted reasonable release time and suffer no loss of pay when the District and Association meet for the purpose of negotiations pertaining to the collective bargaining agreement during the unit member's assigned working hours. Any meeting outside normal hours shall be done upon mutual consent.
- 4.2.3 Distribute Association materials through the District mailboxes, fax machines, and/or "pony" service among the schools, and use bulletin board space at each school site for the purpose of posting notices and bulletins regarding the official business and activities of the Association.
- 4.2.4 Examine public documents that are necessary for the enforcement of this Agreement and the negotiations of future agreement.
- 4.2.5 The District will post a copy of the collective bargaining agreement, on the District website (http://www.asjusd.org) in a format which permits individual employees to download copies. The District will refer new hires to the website for their review and downloading copies of the collective bargaining agreement as needed. The Association President and Site Representatives will each be emailed a link to each new board agenda.

4.2.6 The Association President will be provided release time to facilitate Association business. To help facilitate the District in staffing and scheduling for the following year, by May 1st of each school year, the Association shall submit to the District written notice of the amount of regularly scheduled release time requested for the following school year. The District shall invoice the Association of the cost of the substitute teacher. The Association shall reimburse the District for this cost.

4.3 New Bargaining Unit Member Orientation

- 4.3.1 As per AB 119, the District shall provide the Association president or designee with the name, job title, department, work location, work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email addresses on file with the employer and home addresses of newly hired bargaining unit members within thirty (30) days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire (Cal. Gov't Code 3558)
- 4.3.2 The District shall also provide the Association an updated listing of all members of the bargaining unit including name, job title, department, work location, work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, personal email addresses and home addresses every four months (120 days).
- 4.3.3 In addition, the District shall notify a representative from the Association at least ten (10) days in advance of all new bargaining unit members' orientations. For clarification, any onboarding process, even for a single new unit member, constitutes a new bargaining unit member orientation.
- 4.3.4 The Association shall be allotted sufficient time during the new bargaining unit member orientation to provide unit members with an overview of the Association and the rights and responsibilities created by this Agreement.
- 4.3.5 The District will hold an orientation meeting annually, prior to the first day of school for new bargaining unit members and will provide ten (10) days advanced notice to the Association regarding the time and location of the event.

ARTICLE 5 - COMPENSATION

5.1 Compensation

- 5.1.1 Unit member compensation shall be paid in accordance with the Certificated Salary Schedule in Appendix A.
- 5.1.2 Hourly rate of pay for services rendered beyond the scope of the contracted position/workday, with prior written authorization from administration, shall be in accordance with the rate of \$40.00 per hour on the Certificated Salary Schedule in Appendix A.
- 5.1.3 The stipend schedule for extra duty is attached as Appendix B.

5.2 Initial Placement

- 5.2.1 The District shall place a newly employed unit member on the Certificated Salary Schedule (Appendix A), based upon the unit member's degree(s) and educational units, years of teaching in the public school setting (based on 5.2.2) and credential(s) possessed at the time of his/her commencement of District service.
- 5.2.2 The District shall place a newly employed unit member on the Certificated Salary Schedule (Appendix A), based upon one year of credit on the salary schedule for each year of California credentialed teaching experience in a public school, up to a total of 15 years of credit for teaching experience. For the purpose of initial placement, one year of teaching experience is equivalent to 135 days of full-time experience in a California Credentialed certificate teaching position. A newly employed unit member shall also be granted credit for up to a maximum of 75 educational units beyond a bachelor's degree.
 - 5.2.2.1 Speech and Language Pathologist unit members shall be placed on a separate 202-day salary schedule based on the Certificated Salary Schedule. The District may accept more than 15 years verified previous experience. See Appendix A.
- 5.2.3 A unit member who possesses a valid California teaching credential, but who is teaching in a position requiring that the unit member possess intern qualifications or waiver, shall be treated as a fully credentialed teacher for salary advancement purposes and therefore shall be placed on the salary schedule according to that unit member's length of service and educational units as set forth herein.

5.3 Advancement

5.3.1 Vertical Advancement - A unit member shall advance one (1) vertical step on the salary schedule for each complete year of teaching. For the purposes of advancement, a unit member must serve at least 135 days in the school year of full- time employment. All part-time unit members shall be placed on the scale on the appropriate Step and Column. He/she shall receive the appropriate percent of the step, in accordance with Article 14 of this Agreement.

- 5.3.1.1 For purposes of advancement on the salary schedule, time spent on a military duty for declared national emergency, regardless of length of leave; accident or illness leave, and maternity leave, shall be counted as time worked.
- 5.3.2 Each column on the salary schedule reflects the number of (semester units as per 5.3.8) educational units accrued beyond a bachelor's degree. Each column shall contain the following maximum number of vertical steps.

Column	Maximum Step	
BA	3	
BA+30	9	
BA+45	10	
BA+60	11	
BA+75	13-23	

- 5.3.3 With the exception of the first column, each box in the Certificated Salary Schedule in Appendix A should have a numerical value in it. The first column contains a maximum value; higher steps in the column have no printed numbers. If a unit member's step on the salary schedule exceeds the maximum printed value for that column, the unit member's salary will be the maximum printed value for that column regardless of what step the unit member is actually on.
- 5.3.4 Horizontal Advancement A unit member may advance horizontally on the salary schedule by earning the educational units from any state, regional, or federally accredited institution of higher education or a special program preapproved by the District. The educational units must be reasonably related to a unit member's assignment and/or approved professional growth plan, approved by the Superintendent or designee on District forms (Appendix C) and must not duplicate courses previously completed.
- 5.3.5 A unit member shall submit a list of the units he/she intends to earn towards advancement to the Superintendent or designee for approval by the last working day of the school year. Approval shall not be arbitrarily or capriciously denied. Forms for this purpose are in Appendix C. A minimum grade of "C" for courses on an A through F scale or "pass" for credit only courses must be earned for advancement. No "audit" courses will count towards advancement.
- 5.3.6 Unit member shall receive compensation, according to Appendix A, for successfully completing semester units received from an accredited college or university. Units completed prior to September 1st will be paid that fiscal year so long as the unit member has provided the District with proof of completion by September 15th. Units completed after September 1st, will be paid the following fiscal year so long as the unit member has provided the District with official transcripts. If by September 15th, the unit member is unable to submit official records or transcripts verifying units of study which are to apply

to reclassification, official notices in the form of a grade card, unofficial transcript, or letter from the college or university shall be submitted. Such temporary verification which indicates satisfactory completion of the course(s) shall be sufficient evidence to meet the above requirement. The unit member shall provide the official transcript or affidavit to the District as soon as it becomes available. This section applies to degrees and certificates awarded for compensation.

- 5.3.7 Unit members possessing a Master's degree shall be entitled to remuneration above and beyond that indicated in the salary schedule by the amount listed in Appendix A. A Master's Degree shall be from an accredited college or university, with course work in an educationally related field. A newly acquired Master's degree must be submitted by September 15th.
- 5.3.8 Units applicable for class advancement are "semester units". "Quarter units" shall be converted to semester units by multiplying the total of any such units by two thirds.
- 5.3.9 The District shall provide each unit member by May 15th, of each school year, a written statement of the number of units that the District has registered in its records towards advanced salary schedule placement for the unit member. New unit members will be notified by the end of the second week of school of their placement on the salary schedule.

5.4 Payment Schedule

5.4.1 All unit members shall be paid in 10 or 11 payments, payable on the last business day of the month. A unit member must designate in writing by August 1st, to the Business office their intent to receive 11 payments.

5.5 **Professional Certification Stipends**

- 5.5.1 The annual stipend for professional certification shall be paid in accordance with Appendix A, along with to the unit member's regular salary. Only one stipend in this area shall be paid per unit member. They include the following:
 - National Board Certificate
 - Bilingual Cross-Cultural Language Acquisition and Development Credential (BCLAD)
 - o CLAD
 - Certificate of Completion of Staff Development (SB1969)
 - Certificate of Completion of Staff Development (SB395)
 - Specialist Certificates (Only one can be claimed in this area)
 - Learning Handicapped
 - Severely Handicapped
 - Resource Specialist
 - Communication Handicapped
- 5.5.2 Unit members, whose clear teaching credential includes an English Learner authorization, will not be eligible for the additional stipend.

- 5.5.3 Unit members hired after June 2003, whose clear teaching credential includes an English Learner authorization, will not be eligible for the additional stipend.
- 5.5.4 Unit members shall receive a stipend of one hundred dollars (\$100) per day for District approved sponsored, or required, or promoted programs conducted outside of the current contractual work year.
- 5.5.5 Unit members shall receive a stipend equivalent to the hourly salary schedule rate for hours worked on District-approved curriculum development or District proposed projects. The unit member shall receive a minimum of one hundred dollars (\$100) for each day he/she works on said project. Such projects must be based on a proposal made by the District or on a proposal submitted by the unit member and pre-approved by the District.
- 5.5.6 Unit members shall receive the hourly salary schedule rate for hours worked on District-approved curriculum development or District proposed projects. Such projects must be based on a proposal made by the District or on a proposal submitted by the unit member and pre-approved by the District.

5.6 **Salary Underpayment**

5.6.1 An underpayment is defined as any compensation to which the unit member was entitled, but the District failed to pay. Any underpayment amount brought to the District's attention on or before the 10th of the month will be paid in full at the end of the month. Any underpayment amount brought to the District's attention after the 10th of the month will be paid in full no later than the end of the following month.

5.7 **Salary Overpayment**

- 5.7.1 An overpayment is defined as any compensation received to which the unit member was not entitled. The following procedure shall apply to any salary overpayment:
 - The unit member shall receive a 30 days written notice prior to the deduction explaining the circumstances and the amount of the overpayment.
 - An overpayment of less than \$100 shall be deducted as a single amount.
 - An overpayment in excess of \$100 shall be deducted in equal amounts for the remaining payroll months of the school year unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing by the unit member, the District, and the Association.

5.8 Extra Duty/Coaching Compensation Disbursement

5.8.1 The entire stipend will be disbursed at the end of the extra duty/coaching assignment. To initiate this payment a unit member shall submit an Extra Duty Claim Form to their Site Administrator.

5.9 **Mileage**

5.9.1 Unit members, who may be required by the District to use their own automobiles in the performance of their duties, shall be reimbursed for all such travel at the District mileage rate for all required driving done between work and locations.

5.10 Claim Payments

5.10.1 Claim payments for services rendered, which are in addition to those included in the regular teaching assignment, shall be submitted to the Business office no later than the 15th of the calendar month, and the claim will be paid at the end of the month.

ARTICLE 6 - ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENT

(Negotiated as part of 2023-24 Bargaining Cycle)

6.1 Rights and Procedures

- 6.1.1 The District reserves the right to assign, transfer and reassign personnel to meet the needs of students and the best interests of the school district except as specifically limited by this Article.
 - 6.1.1.1 Site/District administrators shall assign unit members based on the unit member's credentials, teaching experience in a subject matter or grade level, training, major and minor fields of study, advanced degrees related to the assignment, documented strengths or weaknesses, order of employment, special skills, compliance with state and/or federal statutes, and the District projected or actual staffing needs of the school and students.

6.2 **Definitions**

- 6.2.1 Assignment The grade level(s) (K-8 or elementary) or Subject Matter Authorization (Secondary or High School) in which the unit member is currently assigned.
- 6.2.2 Reassignment The movement of a unit member from one subject area to another subject area or from one grade level to another grade level within the same school site.
- 6.2.3 Voluntary Reassignment— A reassignment initiated by the unit member.
- 6.2.4 Involuntary Reassignment—A reassignment initiated by the site/district administrators.
- 6.2.5 Transfer The movement of a unit member from one school site to another school site.
- 6.2.6 Voluntary Transfer A transfer initiated by the unit member.
- 6.2.7 Involuntary Transfer A transfer initiated by the site/district administrators.
- 6.2.8 Vacancy Any position which the district seeks to fill.
- 6.2.9 Seniority The first day of paid status as a probationary employee.
- 6.2.10 Grade Levels Elementary grade levels are defined as follows:
 - Primary: Transitional Kindergarten through grade two (TK 2)
 - Elementary: Grade three through grade five (3 5)
 - Middle: Grade six through grade eighth (6 − 8)

6.3 Vacancies

- 6.3.1 A vacancy is any position that does not have a unit member assigned to it. This includes any vacated, promotional, or newly created position, including positions created by reconfiguration or restructuring and any supplemental instructional programs offered by the District.
- 6.3.2 The Superintendent or his/her designee may declare that vacancies will not be filled if the positions will not exist due to reduction in program, diminished funds, or a decline in enrollment.

- 6.3.3 All vacancies for the coming school year shall be electronically posted on the district website and emailed to all bargaining unit members. Lists shall be updated when a change occurs until all openings have been filled. Updated lists will be emailed to bargaining unit members as they occur throughout the summer.
- 6.3.4 Each opening listed shall include the following information: Site location of the vacancy; grade level or subject matter assignment; credential requirements; service requirements; special qualifications that can be objectively and educationally justified; job description and typical responsibilities if other than a classroom teaching assignment.
- 6.3.5 In determining whether a vacancy shall be filled as per section 6.3.5, a unit member must have the appropriate qualifications. The site/district administrator shall use the following list of criteria to determine if the unit member has the appropriate qualifications:
 - Credentials
 - Knowledge of program
 - Prior performance evaluations
 - Instructional requirements of the program
 - Instructional requirements of the program
 - Ability to maintain effective learning environment
 - Experience in subject matter area
 - Major/minor areas of study
- 6.3.6 If a vacancy is posted it shall be filled by the most qualified applicant available. The site/district administrators shall fill vacancies in the following order:
 - Permanent unit members requesting voluntary reassignment/transfer within the scope of their credentials.
 - Probationary unit members requesting voluntary reassignment/transfer within the scope of their credentials
 - Unit members on Rehire List
 - New Hires
- 6.3.7 If two or more-unit members with State required credentials for the position apply for a vacancy, and all things are equal, the unit member with the greatest seniority will receive the position. If there remains a tie, tie breaking criteria will be applied.(Section 6.9). In determining whether a vacancy shall be filled as per section 6.3.5, a unit member must have the appropriate qualifications. The site/district administrator shall use the following list of criteria to determine if the unit member has the appropriate qualifications:
 - Credentials
 - Knowledge of program
 - Prior performance evaluations
 - Instructional requirements of the program
 - Instructional requirements of the program
 - Ability to maintain effective learning environment
 - Experience in subject matter area
 - Major/minor areas of study

- 6.3.8 A unit member may agree to an assignment outside the unit member's credential authorization(s), providing that the site/district administrator shall assist in securing all the necessary documentation.
- 6.3.9 At the end of a school year, the unit member may withdraw from the assignment referred to in Section 6.3.8 above. Subsequently, the unit member shall be assigned in accordance with Section 6.3.7 above.
- 6.3.10 No outside applicant may be selected to fill a vacancy if there is a qualified unit member applicant. If a unit member is denied a vacant position, the site/district administrator may be required to demonstrate that the person who was assigned to the vacant position has more appropriate qualifications than the unit member.

6.4 Voluntary Reassignment — A reassignment initiated by the unit member.

- 6.4.1 The unit member must submit their letter of intent requesting reassignment by March 1 to the Human Resources Office whether or not a vacancy exists for the following academic year.
- 6.4.2 In making unit member-initiated reassignments, the site/district administrator shall consider identified program needs, the unit member's experience, credential, major and minor fields of study, district seniority, and prior evaluations.
- 6.4.3 Voluntary reassignments will not be made without consultation with all of the parties involved. If a unit member's request for reassignment is denied, the unit member, upon written request, shall be granted a meeting with the site administrator who denied the request to discuss the reasons for the denial. Following the meeting the unit member may request and shall receive written reasons for the denial. The request, meeting, and written response each shall follow consecutive five working day timelines.
- 6.4.4 If two (2) or more unit members request reassignment to a vacancy and all other considerations are equal, seniority tie breaking criteria will be applied. (Section 6.9)
- 6.4.5 The reassignment request shall not be denied arbitrarily, capriciously, or without basis in fact.

6.5 Involuntary Reassignment — A reassignment initiated by the site/district administrators.

- 6.5.1 Site/District administrator may initiate reassignment due to changes in enrollment, openings, staffing shortages or surpluses within a school and/or department or verified curricular needs.
- 6.5.2 In the event the need is filled by involuntary reassignment, the site/district administrator shall inform the affected unit member, in writing, the reasons for the involuntary reassignment/transfer. A copy of this shall be kept by the District Human Resources Office, in a sealed envelope marked confidential for Human Resources Office Only.
- 6.5.3 Upon request by the unit member, within five (5) workdays of receiving notification of an involuntary reassignment, the site/district administrator(s) shall meet with the unit member.
- 6.5.4 Before an involuntary reassignment becomes final, the affected unit member shall have the option of

- applying for a vacancy as a voluntary reassignment.
- 6.5.5 Any unit member who is involuntarily reassigned during a school year shall not be involuntarily reassigned again for two (2) years, inclusive of the year transferred.
- 6.5.6 In the event of an involuntary reassignment, the unit member shall be granted at least three (3) days of paid prep time at the negotiated hourly rate or three (3) days of release time to prepare for his/her new assignment. Said preparation time or release time is to be expended on mutually agreed upon dates between the unit member and the site administrator involved. Additionally, the unit member who is involuntarily changing classrooms will be granted three (3) days of release time or shall be paid at the negotiated hourly rate for three (3) days. This section only applies to individuals who are changing grade level/subject and classroom.
- 6.5.7 In the event of involuntary reassignment to a different grade level and/or subject, the unit member shall work with the site principal to identify needed resources to support the transition, including school supplies, classroom materials, technology, adopted curriculum, and professional development. The unit member may submit receipts for up to \$500 for classroom materials that shall be subject to pre-approval by the site administrator.
- 6.5.8 The District will transport a unit member's materials when relocating to a new classroom provided the unit member prepares such materials for movement. The unit member is responsible for packing and labeling all personal teaching materials. The District is responsible for moving the unit member's personal teaching materials. The District shall prepare and clean the unit member's assigned room before the member is scheduled to occupy the room.
- 6.5.9 Combination grade level classes shall be kept at a minimum as much as possible. Unit members of K-8 combination grade level classes will be chosen on a voluntary basis. If there are insufficient volunteers, a unit member may be assigned to teach the combination grade level class for a maximum period of one year. Unit members assigned combination classes will be afforded all rights provided under sections 6.5.6 and 6.5.7.

6.6 **Voluntary Transfer** — A transfer initiated by the unit member.

- 6.61 The unit member must submit a transfer request by February 15 to the Human Resources Office whether or not a vacancy exists for the following academic year.
- 6.6.2 Voluntary transfers will not be made without consultation with all of the parties involved. If a unit member's request for a transfer is denied, the unit member, upon written request, shall be granted a meeting with the site administrator who denied the request to discuss the reasons for the denial. Following the meeting the unit member may request and shall receive written reasons for the denial. The request, meeting, and written response each shall follow consecutive five working day timelines.
- 6.6.3 If two or more-unit members request a transfer to a vacancy and all other considerations are equal, seniority tie breaking criteria will be applied. (Section 6.9)

6.7 Involuntary Transfer — A transfer initiated by the site/district administrators.

- 6.7.1 An involuntary transfer may be initiated by the site/district administrators due to changes in enrollment and/or boundaries, school closure and/or opening, staffing shortages or surpluses within a school and/or department, and verified curricular needs. The site/district administrators shall seek volunteers at that school before involuntarily transferring a unit member.
- 6.7.2 An involuntary transfer may also be initiated by the site/district administrators in an attempt to improve a unit member's performance. Before an involuntary transfer for this reason takes place, unit members shall be given the opportunity to improve or correct the situation. No unit member shall be involuntarily transferred for punitive or disciplinary reasons.
- 6.7.3 A unit member who is to be involuntarily transferred shall receive written notice of such action together with the reasons for this action. The district will make every reasonable effort to notify the unit member by the last contractual work day.
- 6.7.4 When a unit member is notified of an involuntary transfer as the result of enrollment projections for the subsequent school year and the transfer is no longer necessary or a vacancy occurs at the original site for which the affected unit member is credentialed, the unit member to be transferred has the right of first refusal to remain at the original site. The right of first refusal shall be exercised within 5 working days of notice of the vacancy and no later than June 30.
- 6.7.5 Before an involuntary transfer becomes final, the affected unit member shall have the option of applying for a vacancy as a voluntary reassignment.
- 6.7.6 In the event of an involuntary transfer, the unit member shall be granted at least three (3) days of paid prep time at the negotiated hourly rate or three (3) days of release time to prepare for his/her new assignment. Said preparation time or release time is to be expended on mutually agreed upon dates between the unit member and the site/district administrator involved. Additionally, the unit member who is involuntarily changing classrooms will be granted three (3) days of release time_or shall be paid at the negotiated hourly rate for three (3) days. This section only applies to individuals who are changing grade level/subject and classroom.
- 6.7.7 In the event of involuntary transfer, the unit member shall work with the site principal to identify needed resources to support the transition, including school supplies, classroom materials, technology, adopted curriculum, and professional development. The unit member may submit receipts for up to \$500 for classroom materials that shall be subject to pre-approval by the site administrator.
- 6.7.8 Any unit member who is involuntarily transferred during a school year shall not be involuntarily transferred again for two (2) years, inclusive of the year transferred.

6.8 **Notification of Assignment**

6.8.1 The Human Resources department shall provide an assignment preference form (letter of intent) to each member by February 15th. Unit members shall return this form to the Human Resources department by March 1st. Human Resources shall post all open positions by email to all unit members as they become available. Interested and qualified members shall submit, in writing, their names for

open or new positions.

- 6.8.2 The site administrator shall consider requests for grade/site preference in making assignments.
- 6.8.3 The Human Resource department will notify unit members of their next year's assignment by the last contractual work day. Such notice shall specify the grade level, subject area and/or position to which the unit members will be assigned. Any changes from these assignments will be made on the basis of unpredictable changes in the school site needs, such as student enrollment or unexpected staff vacancies. All unit members involved shall be contacted as soon as the change is known.

6.9 **Seniority**

- 6.9.1 Seniority is defined as the unit member's initial date of paid service in the bargaining unit.
- 6.9.2 Two or more unit members qualified for a position, who have the same initial date of paid service, shall have their seniority number determined by assigned points.
 - One point for each clear credential
 - One point for each supplementary authorization and/or certificate
 - One point for each earned degree at or above BA/BS level beyond the 1st BA/BS earned
 - One point for multiple language skills relevant to the District need as demonstrated by oral interview
- 6.9.3 If seniority is equal with all above conditions, the unit member with the most years of classroom experience will receive priority.
- 6.9.4 Unit members with the same amount of combined points per Article 6.9.2 and 6.9.3 shall have their seniority determined by lot in the presence of the association president.
- 6.9.5 A unit member on a District approved unpaid leave of absence shall maintain, but not accrue, seniority while on leave.
- 6.96 A unit member on District approved special assignment shall continue to accrue seniority while on special assignment.
- 6.9.7 A unit member shall maintain seniority during the layoff period.
- 6.9.8 Unit members returning from leave shall be afforded all rights provided under this section.

6.10 Voluntary transfer/reassignment after the school year begins

6.10.1 If a voluntary transfer or reassignment is made after the unit member has reported to work, the unit member shall be granted at least three (3) days of paid prep time at the negotiated hourly rate or three (3) days of release time to prepare for his/her new assignment. Said preparation time or release time is to be expended on mutually agreed upon dates between the unit member and the site/district administrator involved.

6.11 Classroom Relocation

6.11.1 If a unit member's classroom assignment is involuntarily relocated within the same school site, the unit member will be granted three (3) days of release time or shall be paid at the negotiated hourly rate for up to three (3) days. The District shall prepare and clean the unit member's assigned room before the member is scheduled to occupy the room.

ARTICLE 7 WORK PRESERVATION/REDUCTION IN FORCE/SUBCONTRACTING

7.1 **Dismissed Pursuant to Education Code**

7.1.1 A unit member shall only be dismissed pursuant to the Education Code.

7.2 **Layoff Notices**

- 7.2.1 At least seven (7) workdays prior to the issuance of layoff notices, the District shall notify the Association of its intent to lay off unit members. Concurrent with such notification, the District shall provide the Association with all pertinent information relating to the contemplated layoffs, including, but not limited to the following:
- 7.2.2 The names and sites of unit members being laid off;
- 7.2.3 A list of all unit members ordered by seniority, work location, assignment, and credentials held;
- 7.2.4 A list of all temporary unit members, indicating credentials held;
- 7.2.5 A list of class positions and projected class sizes comparing current, pre-layoff positions to the following year if applicable.
- 7.2.6 A list of all substitute, part-time, and other employees performing bargaining unit work, not identified above, indicating the numbers of hours per week worked by each employee
- 7.2.7 Within five (5) workdays of the notification by the District to the Association of contemplated layoffs, the District and the Association shall meet to negotiate the possible impacts to this Agreement if requested to do so by either party.
- 7.2.8 In the event of a layoff, the district shall not subcontract work formerly performed by a by laid off unit members to any outside entity.
- 7.2.9 Members of the bargaining unit who are laid off have a right to a hearing as per Ed. Code. In the event a unit member is laid off, the District shall pay the full cost of fringe benefit such plans listed in Article 15. for the laid off unit member and her/his dependents for one month following the date health and welfare benefits would otherwise expire. Thereafter, the unit member will be notified by the District insurance carrier of their right to COBRA.

7.3 Rehire of Unit Members

- 7.3.1 By May 15, the District will establish a Rehire List of qualified, credentialed unit members.
- 7.3.2 Unit members will be placed on this Rehire List by District seniority as defined in Article 6.7.
- 7.3.3 Unit members with the same amount of points per Article 6.7 shall have their seniority determined by lot.

- 7.3.4 The lottery shall be conducted in the presence of at least two (2) Association representatives. The unit members impacted may also be present, but are not required to be present.
- 7.3.5 The District will provide the Association with a copy of the Rehire List.

ARTICLE 8 - PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW

8.1 **Program Components**

- 8.1.1 There shall be a Peer Assistance and Review Program ("Program") for all unit members. The Program provides a mechanism whereby exemplary teachers assist other unit members in the areas of subject matter knowledge, teaching methodology, and teaching strategies. The Program shall have three components:
- 8.1.2 Referred Teacher Program: Unit members receiving an "unsatisfactory" evaluation in the area of teaching methodology and/or instruction shall be referred to the Program by the principal or designated evaluator, and shall participate in the Program.
- 8.1.3 Beginning Teacher Induction Program: The District will support Probationary 1 or Probationary 2 in an induction program selected by the District and Beginning Teacher and Support (BTSA) program teachers will be assigned Support Providers on a ratio of no greater than 1 support provider to 2 participating teachers. Participation in the Program shall not create nor expand any rights to retention or permanency as set forth in Education Code Section 44929.21 pertaining to probationary unit members.

8.2 Peer Assistance and Review Panel

8.2.1 The Program shall be governed by a Program Panel ("Panel") composed of 5 members, a majority of whom shall be unit members chosen by the Association and with preferably no more than one (1) representative from each School site. The members of the Panel shall be certificated administrators selected by the Superintendent. Any mid-term replacements will adhere to the same procedure.

A quorum for Panel meetings shall be at least two (2) unit members and one administrator. Decisions shall be made by consensus when possible. Should a vote be required, action must be taken on an affirmative vote of at least 3 members.

- 8.2.2 If a unit member(s) is referred to P.A.R, based on their evaluation, then panel members will be selected annually by May 5th.
- 8.2.3 Qualifications for the unit members of the Panel shall be the same qualifications for a Consulting Teacher.
- 8.2.4 If a member of the Panel leaves prior to the completion of his/her term, the vacant position shall be filled for the remainder of the term in the same manner by which the departed member was originally chosen or designated.

The Panel shall be responsible for:

- Establishing rules of procedure;
- Selecting a chairperson;
- Providing annual training for Panel members;

- Selecting Consulting Teachers;
- Arranging appropriate training for Consulting Teachers;
- Accepting referrals for Referred Teacher peer assistance from Principals or designated evaluators;
- Accepting or rejecting voluntary requests for assistance from individual unit members;
- Any decisions about eligibility for the Program;
- Sending written notification of participation in the Program to the Participating Teacher, Consulting Teacher, and the Principal or designated evaluator;
- Meeting a minimum of four times per year to review the work of the Consulting Teacher log of hours with their caseloads;
- Monitoring the work of peer coaches and their documentation;
- Reviewing peer review reports prepared by Consulting Teacher;
- Monitoring the progress of Referred teacher peer assistance, including
 making reports to the Board of Education regarding Program participants, in
 the program progress after receiving sustained assistance from a Consulting
 Teacher. All reports pursuant to this provision shall be made to the Board not
 later than April 15th of the school year in which the Program was utilized to
 assist a unit member;
- Recommending a budget for the Program, subject to Board approval; and
- Annually evaluating the impact of the Program in order to improve its
 effectiveness. The Program evaluation shall be presented to the Board of
 Trustees at a regular meeting in May of each school year. The Association
 shall receive a copy of the report.
- 8.2.5 A Panel member shall neither participate in discussion nor vote on any matter in which he or she has a personal conflict of interest.
- 8.2.6 Unit member representatives to the Program Panel will receive a stipend of \$500.00 each per year.

8.3 **Consulting Teachers**

- 8.3.1 The Program Panel selects and assigns the Consulting Teacher, who shall assist another unit member in need of development of subject matter knowledge, teaching strategies, teaching methodology on instruction, and assist those participating in the (BTSA) Program.
- 8.3.2 A unit member must possess the following minimum qualifications to be selected as Consulting Teacher;
 - A credentialed unit member with permanent status;
 - Five years of recent classroom teaching experience in ASJUSD;
 - Demonstrated exemplary teaching ability, as indicated by among other things, effective communication skills, subject matter knowledge, and mastery of a range of teaching strategies necessary to meet the needs of pupils in different contexts; and
 - Willing and available to serve for a minimum of one year.

- 8.3.3 Consulting Teachers shall be selected in the following manner:
 - Candidates must file an application with the Panel.
 - Panel members may observe candidates for Consulting Teacher performing in their classrooms prior to the selection with no more than two observations. The number of panelists to observe a candidate will be determined by the Panel. Observations will be arranged with the Site Administrator and the candidate. The Panel may establish additional procedures for selecting Consulting Teachers, which shall be made known in advance to all candidates.
 - The Panel shall select a Consulting Teacher by majority vote.
 - Consulting Teachers shall have responsibility for no more than two unit members, each of whom shall receive a minimum of 6 hours of support and/or consultation per 6-week increment.
 - Unit members participating in the Program may select a Consulting Teacher from the Panel's list of Consulting Teachers.
 - The Consulting Teacher and Participating Teacher shall prepare an Individual Assistance Plan, which outlines the assistance to be provided as well as timelines.
- 8.3.4 Consulting Teachers will receive stipends as follows:
 - Assisting a Referred Teacher: \$ 2,500/year per assisted unit member.
 - Assisting a Probationary 1/2 or Beginning Teacher: \$2,000/year per assisted unit member.
- 8.3.5 A unit member who assumes administrative duties as part of his/her regular workday shall not serve as a Consulting Teacher.

8.4 Referred Teacher Program

- 8.4.1 The Program for Referred Teacher shall be limited to improving any "unsatisfactory" rating regarding subject matter knowledge, teaching strategies, or other areas as outlined in the California Standards for the Teaching Profession that were noted in the unit member's evaluation.
- 8.4.2 The Consulting Teacher's assistance shall focus on the areas recommended by the evaluator.
- 8.4.3 After the final evaluation of the school year in which the Referred Teacher receives the unsatisfactory evaluation a conference will be held with the Referred Teacher, the evaluator who evaluated the unit member and Consulting Teacher, all of whom shall develop an Individual Assistance Plan.
- 8.4.4 The course assistance shall include one or more of the following:
 - Multiple classroom observations by the Consulting Teacher;
 - Assistance specific to the area of teaching methodology or instruction which
 has been evaluated to be "unsatisfactory" or other areas deemed in need of
 assistance by the Consulting Teacher during the period of assistance
 - Opportunities for the unit member receiving assistance to observe exemplary practice, either by the Consulting Teacher during the period of assistance

- 8.4.5 District provided professional development opportunities;
- 8.4.6 District approved Conference attendance, often in the company of the Consulting Teacher, to facilitate reflection on how this experience fits into the Individual Assistance Plan approved by the Panel;
- 8.4.7 Other forms of assistance which the Consulting Teacher and the Panel may provide; and;
- 8.4.8 The parties understand that every possible subject matter competency may not be available within the scope of Consulting Teachers, and therefore, it shall occasionally be necessary to secure additional assistance to fully address identified deficiencies. In such cases, the Consulting Teacher shall maintain prime responsibility for the Individual Assistance Plan, but may function more like a case carrier who assures the availability of appropriate resources.
 - Multiple classroom observations by the Consulting Teacher;
 - Assistance specific to the area of teaching methodology or instruction which
 has been evaluated to be "unsatisfactory". or other areas deemed in need of
 assistance by the Consulting Teacher during the period of assistance;
 - Opportunities for the unit member receiving assistance to observe exemplary practice, either by the Consulting Teacher during the period of assistance;
 - District provided professional development opportunities;
 - District approved Conference attendance, often in the company of the Consulting Teacher, to facilitate reflection on how this experience fits into the Individual Assistance Plan approved by the Panel;
 - Other forms of assistance which the Consulting Teacher and the Panel may provide; and
 - The parties understand that every possible subject matter competency may not be available within the scope of Consulting Teachers, and therefore, it shall occasionally be necessary to secure additional assistance to fully address identified deficiencies. In such cases, the Consulting Teacher shall maintain prime responsibility for the Individual Assistance Plan, but may function more like a case carrier who assures the availability of appropriate resources.
- 8.4.9 Communication and consultation with the Site Administrator/Evaluator shall be ongoing.
- 8.4.10 Nothing in this article precludes the Site Administrator Evaluator or District from doing informal observations nor from notifying the unit member verbally and/or in writing regarding incidents or events related to the unit member's fulfillment of his/her professional obligations
- 8.4.11 Every six weeks, the Consulting Teacher will submit a log which records the dates, times met and a list of topics discussed to the Panel. The Consulting Teacher will share this information during a conference with the unit member, prior to submission to the Panel. A copy of this information will be provided to the Site Administrator/Evaluator.
- 8.4.12 The Consulting Teacher shall submit an oral and written final report regarding the unit member's participation in the Program to the Panel no later than April 1st. This report shall describe the measures of assistance provided to the unit member. The final report shall become a part of the Referred Teacher's personnel file. The unit member shall have

the opportunity to attach his/her comments.

- 8.4.13 The Panel shall deliberate whether: (1) the unit member is "proficient" in the areas evaluated and (2) further assistance and remediation would or would not be successful. Reasons in support of either conclusion will be provided.
- 8.4.14 Notwithstanding the above, and while the term of this assistance shall normally be for one school year, the assistance may be extended up to a second year if the Panel believes significant progress is being made, although the permanent unit member may not have returned to a "proficient Meets Standards" level of performance.
- 8.4.15 The deliberations of the Panel shall be closed and confidential. Panel decisions shall be based on the information provided by the Consulting Teacher, the Site Administrator/Evaluator, and the Referred Teacher or his/her Association representative or other representative requested by the unit member.
- 8.4.16 Neither the unit member, Consulting Teacher, nor Principal/Evaluator may be present during confidential Panel deliberations of the Panel, which are confidential. The Panel may request additional information from any unit member involved in the Program.
- 8.4.17 Prior to April 15th, the decision of the Panel shall be reported to the unit member prior to April 15th, Consulting Teacher, the Site Administrator/Evaluator, and the Association representative, or other representative and if requested by the unit member, in conference with the Superintendent or designee.
- 8.4.18 The Panel shall report its findings to the Superintendent who will report to the Board of Trustees.

8.5 Referred Teacher Rights

- 8.5.1 The Referred Teacher shall be entitled to review all reports generated by the Consulting Teacher, prior to their submission to the Panel and to attach his/her comments. To effectuate this right, the Consulting Teacher shall provide the Referred Teacher with copies of such reports at least three (3) working days prior to any such meeting.
- 8.5.2 The Referred Teacher shall have a right to be represented by the Association or another representative of the unit member's choice, in any meetings of the Panel to which they are called and shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present

- his/her point of view concerning any report being made.
- 8.5.3 The Referred Teacher shall have the right to present reasons why a specific Consulting Teacher should be replaced and another Consulting Teacher substituted and to have those reasons considered. The decision of the Panel shall be final.
- 8.5.4 This Program in no manner diminishes the legal rights of the Referred Teacher unit members.

8.6 **Beginning Teacher Program**

- 8.6.1 Beginning Teachers shall participate in the Program. All participants referred to the Program based on an unsatisfactory evaluation will be served prior to accepting any Beginning Teacher participants.
- 8.6.2 The Consulting Teacher and unit member will meet to determine the Beginning Teacher's needs and jointly develop an Individual Assistance Plan. This plan will draw from the course of assistance that is available through the Program and include timelines.
- 8.6.3 Consulting Teachers will provide oral and written feedback documentation to the Beginning Teacher. Communication between a Beginning Teacher and his/her coach concerning participation in the Program shall remain confidential and documentation from the Consulting Teacher will not be placed in their personnel file.

8.7 Miscellaneous Provisions

- 8.7.1 Expenditures for the Program shall not exceed the approved budget. The budget for the Program shall be approved by the District Board.
- 8.7.2 It is the intent of the District and Association that this Article remains in effect for as long as specific funding for the Program is allocated by the District.

8.8 Governing Board Review of Recommendations by Panel

8.8.1 Nothing herein shall preclude the Board from examining information, which it is entitled by law to review in connection with the evaluation of and/or decision to retain in employment, probationary or temporary unit members.

8.9 Retention of Education Rights

8.9.1 Nothing herein shall modify or in any manner affect the right of the Governing Board/District or unit member under provisions of the Education Code relating to employment, classification, retention or non-re-election of unit member.

8.9.2 Nothing herein shall modify or affect the District's right to issue notices of unsatisfactory performance and/or unprofessional conduct pursuant to Education Code Section 44938.

8.10 Defense and Indemnification

8.10.1 Unit members who provide assistance and review shall have the same protection from liability and access to appropriate defense as other public school employees pursuant to Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code.

8.11 Non-Management/SupervisoryStatus

8.11.1 Functions performed by Teacher Panel members and/or Consulting Teachers pursuant to the Program shall not constitute either management or supervisory functions as defined by subdivisions (g) and (m) of Section 3540.1 of the Government Code.

8.12 **Association Representation**

8.12.1 A Referred Teacher has the right to be represented throughout these procedures by the Association representative or another representative

ARTICLE 9 - PROFESSIONAL RIGHTS

9.1 Evaluation Procedure

It is recognized that a system of periodic evaluation is essential to assist unit members in developing competency and realizing their potential. It is further recognized that information gathered through such a system will enable Board of Trustees decisions, for which a unit member's competence is relevant, to be made in a just and equitable manner.

- 9.1.1 Probationary and temporary unit members shall be evaluated each school year.
 - 9.1.1.1 The evaluation of first-year temporary and probationary unit members shall focus on two (2) California Standards for the Teaching Profession (as numbered above):
 - Create and Maintain Effective Environments for Student Learning:
 - Plan Instruction and Design Learning Experiences for All Students.
 - 9.1.1.2 The evaluation of second-year temporary and probationary unit members shall focus on three (3) new standards:
 - Engage and Support all Students in Learning;
 - Understand and Organize Subject Matter for Student Learning.
 - Assess Student Learning.
- 9.1.2 Permanent (tenured) unit members shall be evaluated every other year. Either the unit members or the evaluator may initiate more frequent participation. If a unit member is scheduled to be evaluated during a particular school year, but is granted a leave of absence for one (1) semester or longer, such evaluation shall take place during the first year of return to duty.
 - 9.1.2.1 The evaluation of permanent unit members shall focus on any three (3) of the standards as agreed to in the meeting.
 - 9.1.2.2 Permanent (tenured) unit members who qualify may participate in the Professional Partners Program as outlined in Appendix E as an alternative to the formal evaluation process.
 - 9.1.2.3 A unit member may be evaluated every five (5) years provided the unit member: (1) has permanent status; (2) has been employed by the District for at least ten (10) years; (3) is highly qualified as defined in 20 U.S.C. Section 7801; (4) had an immediately preceding evaluation meeting or exceeding standards; and (5) the unit member and evaluator agree in writing to the five year evaluation cycle. The unit member or evaluator may withdraw from the agreement no later than October 1 of any school year in which case the unit member shall be evaluated that year. This provision shall not preclude an evaluator from making informal observations at any time.

- 9.1.3 Unit members to be evaluated during a particular year can retrieve evaluation forms, (see Appendices F and M), from the District website (http://www.asjusd.k12.ca.us) advised of the criteria upon which the evaluation is to be based, and notified of the identity of their evaluator no later than October 1st of the year in which the evaluation is to take place.
 - 9.1.3.1 Unit members assigned to more than one site will be observed once by each Site Administrator. The observing evaluators will jointly write the final evaluation report and meet with the unit member.
- 9.1.4 The unit member being evaluated, and the evaluator shall meet no later than October 15th to discuss:
 - 9.1.4.1 Four (4) or more objectives and standards to be achieved during the evaluation period. A maximum of two (2) objectives may be determined by the evaluator if the previous evaluation was satisfactory. In the case of a previous unsatisfactory evaluation, the evaluator may determine no more than (4) objectives.
 - 9.1.4.2 A schedule of formal observations, conferences and final evaluation dates will be given to each unit member. In the event of a disagreement over the objectives, standards and/or evaluation schedule, the unit member and the evaluator shall:
 - Make a good faith effort to resolve the differences themselves.
 - If differences are unable to be resolved, each shall have the opportunity to state their position on the matter(s) in dispute, and to have a written statement attached to the evaluation form.
 - The unit member shall have the right to identify in writing and attach any
 constraints which the unit member believes may inhibit her/his ability to
 meet the objectives and standards established.
 - During the course of the evaluation, circumstances may change which require modification of the original objectives and standards. The unit member and/or evaluator may initiate a change of these objectives and standards in a manner prescribed in Section 9.1.4 above.
 - The evaluation process shall include the following activities:
 - Two (2) formal classroom observations shall last at least thirty (30) minutes, and each shall be made known to the unit member at least five (5) days prior to their occurrence.
 Observations shall include a pre and post conference. The post-conference shall occur within five (5) days of the observation and include written feedback.
 - A unit member who receives a negative evaluation shall, upon request, be entitled to additional classroom observations, evaluation conferences and written evaluations. Such entitlement has timelines and conferences as per

- 9.1.5 A negative evaluation is defined as unsatisfactory performance.
- 9.1.6 In the case of negative evaluation (s), or if any problems are noted as per Section 9.1.6, the unit member shall take positive actions to correct any cited deficiencies. The evaluator shall take positive action to assist the unit member in correcting any cited deficiencies. The evaluator's role to assist the unit member shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
 - Specific recommendations for improvement.
 - Site/District assistance to implement such recommendations.
 - Provision of additional resources, without cost to the unit member, to be utilized to assist with improvements.
 - Techniques to measure improvement.
 - Time schedule to monitor progress.
 - In preparing the final evaluation form for placement in the unit member's personnel file, the evaluator shall rely primarily upon data collected through classroom observations and evaluation conferences. Comments on the evaluation may include commendations; recommendations; parent and pupil relations; working relationships with staff; and the care of facilities, equipment, and materials. Unsubstantiated statements shall not be included in the evaluation.
- 9.1.7 A final evaluation conference between the unit member and evaluator shall be held no later than May 1st to discuss the content of the final evaluation form. In the event the unit member disputes the content, the unit member may prepare a written statement which shall be attached and incorporated into the final evaluation. Unit members have the right to request association representation to be present at the final evaluation meeting.
- 9.1.8 Unit members shall not be required to participate in the evaluation(s) and/or observation(s) of other unit members, except as provided for in the Peer Assistance and Review (PAR) Article 8 of this Agreement.
- 9.1.9 The evaluation of unit members, pursuant to this Article, shall not include or be based upon the following:
 - Standardized achievement test results, except as mandated in Education Code Section 44662 which may require the use of state adopted criterion referenced assessments related to statewide content standards.
 - Results of any tests utilized for the purpose of a School Improvement Plan.
 - Achievement of objectives stated in Individual Educational Programs (IEP's) of special education pupils.
 - The success, or lack thereof, of an instructional or clerical aide in the performance of tasks assigned by the unit member.
 - Intercoms and television cameras used for communications and monitoring safety conditions shall not be used for the purposes of evaluation of unit members.
 - The evaluator shall take into consideration constraints such as lack of access to textbooks, reference books, equipment, supplies, materials, storage space, educational technology and classroom facilities to properly perform his/her assigned duties.

9.2 California Standards for the Teaching Profession

The California Standards for the Teaching Profession, as they may be modified from time to time, will guide unit member preparation programs, new teacher assignments and teacher 1 evaluations. These standards are organized around six (6) interrelated categories of teaching practice, (see Appendix G).

9.3 Personnel Files

- 9.3.1 There shall be a single personnel file for each unit member. Personnel files shall be kept in the central administrative office of the District. Information of a derogatory nature maintained by the District or District's Administrators shall not be used in any decision affecting the discipline, employment status or assignment of a unit member unless that information has been entered into the personnel file in accordance with the procedures in Sections 9.3.3 and 9.3.4.
- 9.3.2 Materials in the personnel file of a unit member shall be made available for inspection by the unit member involved. Unit members shall have the right to inspect and obtain a copy of personnel file materials, upon request. Upon written authorization by the unit member, an Association representative may review the unit member's file or accompany the unit member in her/his review of the file. Such review, and any preparation of comments in response to the material and/or statement, shall take place during normal business hours, and the unit member shall be released from duty for this purpose without salary reduction. Material which may be excluded from inspection shall be limited to ratings, reports or records which were obtained prior to the employment of the unit member.
- 9.3.3 Information of a derogatory nature, except material excluded in accordance with Section 9.3.2 above, shall not be entered or filed unless and until the unit member is given notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon. A unit member shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such derogatory statement, her/his own comments thereon.
- 9.3.4 All material placed in a unit member's personnel file shall be dated and signed by the person who caused the material to be prepared. Material shall be added in a timely fashion but no more than ninety (90) days from when the incident occurred or when the District should reasonably have known of the incident, whichever is later.
- 9.3.5 Authorization must be obtained from either the Superintendent or designee to have access to a unit member's personnel file. The contents of all personnel files shall be kept in strictest confidence. The District shall keep a log indicating the persons who have requested to examine a personnel file, as well as the dates such requests were made. Such log shall be available for examination by the unit member or her/his authorized Association representative.

9.4 Public Complaints

- 9.4.1 No negative and/or unsatisfactory evaluation, assignment, discipline, dismissal, or other adverse action shall be predicated upon complaints, information or material of a derogatory or critical nature which has been received by the District from pupils, parents, district employees, and/or the public unless the following procedures have been followed:
 - 9.4.1.1 Complaints concerning unit members should be made directly by the complainant to the unit member against whom the complaint is lodged. The Site Administrator, after consultation with the parent/guardian, will encourage the parents/guardians to attempt to orally resolve complaints with the unit member personally if they have not previously done so.
 - 9.4.1.2 Should the involved unit member believe the allegations in the public warrant a meeting, the immediate supervisor shall attempt to schedule a meeting between the member and the complainant. At the request of the unit member, Association representative(s) may be present at the meeting.
 - 9.4.1.3 The Site Administrator is responsible for investigating complaints and will attempt to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of the persons involved. If the complaint is resolved, the Site Administrator will so advise all concerned parties.
 - 9.4.1.4 If the complaint remains unresolved after review by the Site Administrator, the Site Administrator shall refer the complaint, together with a report of the situation, to the Superintendent and Association.
 - 9.4.1.5 The unit member is entitled to a copy of any written complaint or the results of an investigation, if conducted.
- 9.4.2 Complaints which are withdrawn, shown to be false, or are not sustained, shall neither be placed in the unit member's personnel file nor utilized in any evaluation, assignment, or disciplinary or dismissal action against the unit member.
- 9.4.3 All information or proceedings regarding any complaint shall be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law.

9.5 Teaching Conditions

- 9.5.1 Except in times of emergencies or construction/renovation of classrooms and District facilities, work shall be done at a time that will least interfere with the instructional program. Should the health, safety, or welfare of pupils or unit members be endangered, immediate action shall be taken by the District to correct the problem.
- 9.5.2 Unit members shall not be expected to use personal funds to purchase supplies or personal equipment for their assignment.
- 9.5.3 Any criticism (criticism does not include a statement of fact: i.e., "You are late", or "You have yard duty", etc.) by an administrator, board member, or employee on a unit member's job performance shall be made in confidence to the unit member and not in the presence of students and/or parents/guardians.
- 9.3.1 Both the District and the Association acknowledge that unit members may need access to their classroom after contract hours. Unit members shall be provided with all necessary keys and security codes for such access. An abuse of this privilege shall cause the privilege to be rescinded for an individual

ARTICLE 10 - DISCIPLINE

10.1 Purpose

- 10.1.1 The purpose of the Discipline Article is to establish a corrective process of professional improvement for unit members. The intent is to have a process that is fair, consistent, and progressive in application. The District may discipline unit members for just cause with due process.
- 10.1.2 The following just-cause guidelines shall be recognized:
 - 10.1.2.1 The unit member shall be adequately informed of the consequences of his/her conduct.
 - 10.1.2.2 The District's rules, regulations and policies shall be reasonable and related to the efficient operation of the District.
 - 10.1.2.3 A fair and objective investigation should reveal the necessity for disciplinary action.
 - 10.1.2.4 Rules, orders and penalties should be applied fairly and equitably.
 - 10.1.2.5 Disciplinary action should be appropriate and reasonably related to the nature of the offense.

10.2 **Progressive Discipline**

The following progressive discipline procedures will be applied except where the serious nature of the offense may require the District to directly impose a written warning, written reprimand, or suspension without pay. The decision to bypass required progressive discipline steps may be appealed under Article 16, Grievance Procedure of the Agreement.

10.2.1 Verbal Counseling/Warning

The District shall first issue a verbal counseling/warning before imposing further discipline.

10.2.2 Written Warning

Subject to 10.2.1 above, written warnings may not be used unless the unit member has been verbally warned about similar actions within the last twelve (12) months.

10.2.3 Written Reprimand

Subject to 10.2.2 above, written reprimands may not be used unless the unit member has received a written warning about similar actions within the last twelve (12) months.

10.2.4 Suspension Without Pay

Except for action taken under Section 10.7, subject to 10.2.3 above, suspension may not be used unless the unit member has received a written reprimand about similar actions within the last twelve (12) months. No unit member will be suspended for more than fifteen (15) working days during a school year. In all instances, however, the length of a suspension will relate to the severity of the action.

10.3 Notice of Suspension

Notice of suspension will be made in writing and served in person or by certified mail upon the unit member by the Superintendent or designee. A copy will be concurrently provided to the Association President. The notice of suspension will contain:

- 10.3.1 A statement of the specific acts or omissions upon which the action is based;
- 10.3.2 A statement of the cause(s) for which action is recommended;
- 10.3.3 Where applicable, the Education Code section, policy, rule regulation, or directive violated;
- 10.3.4 Penalty proposed and effective date; and
- 10.3.5 Copies of the documentary evidence upon which the recommendation is based.

10.4 Appeal

Only a written reprimands and/or suspension without pay may be appealed under the grievance procedure in Article 16, Grievance Procedure. If appealed, the penalty will not be applied until the grievance procedure is completed, except when necessary for the immediate removal of the unit member from the worksite, as per Section 10.7.

10.5 **Confidentiality**

All information or proceedings regarding any actions or proposed actions pursuant to the Article will be kept confidential by the parties to the extent permitted by law. All communications involving discipline or that could potentially lead to discipline shall be done in a private manner and in a private setting.

10.6 **Association Representation**

Unit members shall, upon request, be entitled to Association representation at any meeting which is likely to result in any disciplinary action against the unit member. The Site Administrator shall advise the unit member of this right, in advance of the meeting. However, unavailability of such representation shall not unreasonably delay imposition of discipline.

10.7 Education Code

Any actions beyond those outlined above shall conform to appropriate Education Code regulations. Nothing in Article 10 shall limit the District's right to institute dismissal, immediate suspension and mandatory leave of absence proceedings as set forth in Education Code, Sections 44932 through 44948.5 and subsequent amendments and supplements thereto, nor shall discipline under this Article or any other terms of the Article be regarded as a precondition to, or limitation upon, such Code proceedings. In such cases, the Superintendent may skip progressive discipline steps and suspend a unit

member as set forth in provisions of the Education Code pending Board action when, in the opinion of the Superintendent, continuation of the unit member in their position would present a clear danger to the students, staff, property or reputation of the District, or to the unit member. In such cases, the Superintendent must provide the unit member with a written justification of this action but said justification may be provided after the suspension has taken effect. If the District attempts to suspend a unit member pursuant to Education Code and fails, the District is prohibited from attempting to impose any discipline under this article for the same offense.

ARTICLE 11 - HOURS AND ADJUNCT DUTIES

(Negotiated as part of 2023-24 Bargaining Cycle as Related to Article 18)

11.1 Length of Workday

- 11.1.1 The workday for unit members shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours, inclusive of a duty-free lunch period (see section 11.1.4).
 - 11.1.1.1 One half (½) of a workday shall be 3.75 hours, regardless of the lunch schedule.
- 11.1.2 At the discretion of the Principal, unit members may be excused from work in cases of personal emergency. Unit members may be excused to attend class(s) for professional growth.
- 11.1.3 Unit members may be required to attend meetings beyond the 7-1/2 hour day not to exceed an additional one (1) hour per month. Meeting extensions are allowable by mutual consent of the unit members.
 - 11.1.3.1 Advanced notice of meetings extending beyond the workday shall be provided eight (8) working days in advance.
 - 11.1.3.2 Incentives to exceed the provisions of section 11.1.3 will be mutually agreed upon between the unit members and their Principal.
 - 11.1.3.3 On days when unit members are required to work beyond the 7 ½ hour workday as described in 11.1.3, unit members shall be permitted to leave school 15 minutes after the end of the following instructional day provided that student safety concerns have been met.
- 11.1.4 All unit members are entitled to a minimum forty-five (45) minute continuous duty-free lunch period, except for rainy day schedule, in which case all unit members are entitled to a 30 minute continuous duty-free lunch, except in emergency situations. High school unit members will only take 30 minutes of this 45 minute time period for lunch. If, before the end of any work year, a majority of high school unit members vote to have a 45 minute lunch, the schedule will be changed to a 45 minute lunch for the following school year. Lunch periods may be modified with mutual agreement between the District and the Association.
- 11.1.5 The unit members should attend three (3) evening activities. The following nighttime activities may be required and these activities include but are not limited to: Backto-School Night, Open House, Graduation, Winter Program, and Student Performance Programs. On days when unit members are required to return for an evening function, unit members are permitted to leave school at the end of the following instructional day provided that student safety concerns have been met.

- 11.1.5.1 Unit members at the High School are required to do six (6) extra duty points to provide adult supervision for extra-curricular events such as, but not limited to, dances and sporting events. The nature of the activity and manner of the execution of the duty points shall be decided by the High School unit members and the Principal, using the SLT or the full staff consensus model.
- On one designated day per week, the TK-8 pupils' instructional day shall end at 1:15 pm. High School pupils' instructional day shall end at approximately 2:50 pm. This time shall be utilized as follows:
 - Up to three (3) early release days per month may be utilized by the school site administrator for workshops, training, and/or facility meetings.
 - The remaining early release days may be teacher directed and may be utilized for grade level/span meetings, PLC's and/or planning and preparation in collaboration with peers for their assignment.
- 11.1.7 In the event of District All Staff Professional Development opportunities, the Site Leadership teams will be consulted on the content needs of members and efforts will be made to hold the meetings in a location which minimize transportation inconvenience on members- such as rotating between school sites.
- 11.1.8 Parent/Teacher conference schedules at the elementary sites shall follow the pupils' instructional day ending time as stated in Article 11.1.6.

11.2 Adjunct Duties

- 11.2.1 Each year, unit members may be assigned direct student supervision on an equitable basis by site which can include yard duty, playground supervision, bus duty, and/or student activities during a unit member's assigned work day.
- 11.2.2 All unit members are entitled to a minimum fifteen (15) minute break between the beginning of the school day and their assigned lunch period, except on rainy days when a short bathroom break is provided. A unit member is considered to be given said break when he/she is on yard duty or playground supervision.
- 11.2.3 Unit members may be assigned duties that include in-service activities, parent/teacher conferences, orientation meetings, department/grade level meetings, school/staff meetings, and district meetings.
- 11.2.4 Unit members at the High School are required to do extra duty points to provide adult supervision for extra-curricular events such as, but not limited to, dances and sporting events. Unit members may elect to do more than six duty points; however, no more than six points shall be required. One (1) duty point is the equivalent of a 2-hour activity served outside of the contractual workday. The nature of the activity and manner of the execution of the duty points shall be decided by the High School unit members and the Site/Administrator, using the SLT or the full staff consensus model.

11.3 **PreparationTime**

- 11.3.1 All High School unit members shall be assigned a preparation period.

 The preparation period shall be the same length as the regular class period.
- 11.3.2 TK-8 unit members shall have equitable preparation time. Preparation time shall occur for the same amount of time every student day.
- 11.3.3 Unit members shall not be required to substitute during their release period.
- 11.3.4 If a unit member volunteers to substitute during their release period, she/he shall be paid at the contract hourly rate.
- 11.3.5 Unit members who travel from one school to another on a regular basis shall have the same rights to a release period, lunch period, and physical relief breaks as do other unit members. Adequate time to travel between sites shall be provided.

Further, unit members shall be reimbursed for actual miles driven between sites at the current District mileage rate. In addition, unit members who serve more than one site may request, and the District shall provide if possible, the following conditions at each site served:

- 11.3.5.1 Adequate work space with appropriate lighting and ventilation;
- 11.3.5.2 Instructional materials and appropriate supplies to perform assigned duties;
- 11.3.5.3 Equipment, materials and supplies specific to special needs programs; and
- 11.3.5.4 A desk, lockable filing cabinet and storage space.

11.4 Individualized Educational Programs (IEP's)

- 11.4.1 Special education unit members who participate in the formulation of Individualized Educational Programs shall be granted release time from their regular duties to perform tasks related to formulating IEP's.
- 11.4.2 TK-8 unit members shall receive release time to attend IEP meetings.
- 11.4.3 When required to attend IEP meetings which occurs during their preparation time or after their contracted hours, unit members shall be compensated at their per diem rate.

11.5 WorkYear

- 11.5.1 The work year for unit members shall be one hundred eighty-seven (187) work days that consists of: One hundred eighty (180) instructional days, four (4) professional development days, and three (3) teacher workdays. An "instructional day" is any day students are present. A "work day" is any day unit members are required to report to work, whether or not students are present.
- 11.5.2 Unit members shall not be required to attend meetings for more than one (1) hour on any teacher workday without consent of both parties, with the exception of the first workday in which the meeting will be two (2) hours.
- 11.5.3 The school year calendar shall be developed with mutual agreement between the District and the Association. The District will make school year calendars available on the home page of the District's website after Board approval.

11.6 **Substitute Shortage**

11.6.1.1 Non-classroom certificated staff, such as resource specialist, or teacher on special assignment, shall receive the contract hourly rate for actual class time when serving as a substitute due to a substitute shortage. The unit member would still be expected to perform the regular duties of their assignment, which is anticipated to cause extra hours to be worked beyond the normal workday, thus justifying the extra pay.

11.7 Miscellaneous

- 11.7.1 Unit members will not be expected to read, respond to, or be responsible for the content of work emails sent after contract hours. Emails shall be responded to in a reasonable amount of time.
- 11.7.2 The Association and District shall collaboratively manage workload changes for unit members. The Association and District shall design release time appropriate for each grade level and subject area to accomplish these tasks.
- 11.7.3 Site Leadership Team: The site leadership team (SLT) shall be comprised of one (1) unit member for every six (6) site unit members, with a minimum of three (3) unit members. Site representatives shall hold elections to determine SLT members. The SLT shall also include one (1) full or part-time administrator. The purpose of the SLT is to collaboratively develop and implement activities to meet the professional needs of the learning community.

11.7.4 High school unit members will vote on whether to use the SLT model or to use the full staff consensus model.

11.8 High School Grad Ex Program

- 11.8.1 Grad Ex stipend (equal to .5%) will be inclusive of the ongoing salary increases. Grad Ex will be included in the Appendix B stipend schedule and will be in effect for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020 to allow for the Principal, staff, and Superintendent to assess the program and make any necessary adjustments. Full time teachers performing Grad Ex coaching will receive an annual stipend of \$1600; part time (.6 FTE or below) teachers performing Grad Ex coaching will receive an annual stipend of \$800. Human Resources will receive a list of assigned teachers who are Grad Ex coaches by the end of the first four (4) weeks of the semester.
- 11.8.2 If after 6/30/2020 coaching is still a required component of Grad Ex performed by teachers, then this stipend will be in full effect without additional stipulations or exceptions and subject to future negotiation procedures.
- 11.8.2.1 If after 6/30/2020 coaching is not a required component of Grad Ex performed by teachers, the .5% ongoing monies will be retained by the Association and its use will be discussed at the next bargaining session unless both the Association and the District agree to discuss it at an earlier date.

ARTICLE 12 - SAFETY AND HEALTH

(Negotiated as part of 2023-24 Bargaining Cycle)

The Board and District shall make reasonable provisions for the safety and health of its unit members while in the course of employment, and all unit members are expected to cooperate to the best of their ability in the prevention of accidents to themselves, fellow employees, and students.

12.1 Safe Working Conditions

- 12.1.1 The District shall make reasonable efforts to keep all school grounds reasonably clean, healthful, and well-maintained for the unit members. Additionally, the District shall maintain clean restroom facilities designated for adult members only.
- 12.1.2 The District shall make reasonable efforts to keep all school grounds and facilities free of unwanted rodents, pests, and insects such as ants, roaches, and fleas. If insecticides or poisons are used, the District shall notify unit members upon request of the names of the chemicals used at least one week in advance of their use. The District shall apply them only at times when unit members and pupils are not present, allowing sufficient time for toxic effects to wear off before humans re- enter the affected area.
- 12.1.3 A unit member who identifies a student as not being toilet-trained shall report the issue to the site administrator. No teacher of record in a General Education classroom shall be required to change a student's soiled clothing.

12.2 Bodily Harm

- 12.2.1 The District shall notify unit members in accordance with Education Code Section 49079 of a record of conduct demonstrating that a student has caused, or attempted to cause serious bodily injury. Such information shall be kept confidential.
- 12.2.2 Unit members shall immediately report cases of physical and/or verbal assault suffered by them in connection with their employment to their principal, who shall immediately report the incident to the police if applicable. Such notification shall immediately be forwarded to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall comply with any reasonable request from the unit member for information in the possession of the District relating to the incident or the persons involved, and shall act in appropriate ways as liaison between the unit member, police and courts.
- 12.2.3 The District shall give direct legal and other related assistance in accordance with applicable law for any assault upon the unit member while acting in the discharge of his/her duties.

12.2.4 When absences arise out of or from assault, injury or credible threats suffered in connection with a unit member's employment, the unit member shall not forfeit sick leave, personal leave or job assignment.

12.3 Short Term Pupil Suspension

- 12.3.1 The Principal shall assist a unit member with the suspension procedure for suspending a pupil from her/his class for the day of the suspension and the following day for any act that disrupts or diminishes the education process, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 12.3.1.1 Causing, attempting to cause, or threatening to cause physical injury to another person.
 - 12.3.1.2 Possession, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, knife, explosive or other dangerous objects.
 - 12.3.1.3 Unlawfully possessing, using, selling, otherwise furnishing, or being under the influence of any controlled substance as defined under Health and Safety Code Section 11007, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant.
 - 12.3.1.4 Committing robbery or extortion.
 - 12.3.1.5 Causing or attempting to cause damage of school or private property.
 - 12.3.1.6 Stealing or attempting to steal school or private property.
 - 12.3.1.7 Committing an obscene act or engaging in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
 - 12.3.1.8 Disrupting school activities or willfully defying authority of a unit member.
 - 12.3.1.9 Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code Section 212.5.
- 12.3.2 The actions stated above may occur at any time or place related to school attendance or school activity including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 12.3.2.1 While on school grounds.
 - 12.3.2.2 While going from school.
 - 12.3.2.3 During lunch period either on or off campus.
 - 12.3.2.4 During, going to, or coming from school-sponsored activities.

- 12.3.3 The Principal shall facilitate carrying out any and all obligations required of the unit member by the Education Code including, but not limited to, the sending of notices to parents regarding required meetings and the scheduling of such meetings at mutually acceptable times.
- 12.3.4 The pupil shall not be returned to the unit member's class during the period of suspension without the unit member's concurrence.
- 12.3.5 The pupil shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of suspension. If the pupil is assigned to more than one class per day, this section shall apply only to classes scheduled during the same time as the class from which the pupil was suspended.

12.4 Longer Term Pupil Suspension

- 12.4.1 A unit member may also suspend a pupil from class for the remainder of the day, plus one additional day for any acts enumerated in the Education Code Section 48900 including, but not limited to those set forth in Section 12.3.1 of this Article.
- 12.4.2 Any required notices regarding the suspension to the pupil's parents or guardians shall be performed by the Principal.
- 12.4.3 The unit member may require the pupil to complete any assignment or test missed during the suspension.

12.5 Parent/Guardian Involvement and Information

It is the belief of the Association and the District that student achievement is enhanced when parent/guardian involvement is increased. The Association and the District are committed to increasing parent/guardian participation in the education of students. With the active involvement of parents/guardians comes an increase in visitors to the school site. To that end, in order to support the needs and rights of the parents/guardians and unit members and to ensure the safety of students and unit members, the following procedures shall be followed.

- 12.5.1 Parents/guardians wishing to review materials for use in their student's classroom shall provide a written request to the student's teacher(s) at least three (3) work- days prior to the date the parent/guardian wishes to come to the school to review the materials.
 - 12.5.1.1 Upon the unit member's agreement as to the date and time, the parent(s)/guardian(s) may come to the school to review the materials.
 - 12.5.1.2 Such review shall not take place without the consent of the unit member during the duty free lunch-time, or any other duty free break times during the workday.

- 12.5.2 Parent(s)/guardian(s) wishing to observe in a unit member's classroom shall provide a written request at least three (3) workdays prior to the day of the requested observation.
 - 12.5.2.1 Upon the unit member's agreement as to the date of an observation, the parent(s)/guardian(s) may observe the classroom at any time during the student instructional day.
 - 12.5.2.2 The observation shall last no longer than one (1) hour.
 - 12.5.2.3 The time and frequency of observations will be mutually agreed upon among the unit member, parent(s) or guardian(s), and the Principal.
 - 12.5.2.4 If, during the course of an observation, the parent(s)/guardian(s) presence becomes disruptive, the unit member shall have the authority to tell the parent(s)/guardian(s) to leave the classroom and/or ask for assistance from the Principal.
 - 12.5.2.4.1 The unit member shall report any such incidents to the Principal as soon after the incident as possible.
 - 12.5.2.4.2 A disruptive parent/guardian shall not be allowed to observe the unit member's classroom again unless agreed to by the unit member and the Principal.
- 12.5.3 The District shall pursue appropriate legal action against any parent/guardian who demonstrates a pattern of disruptive behavior while visiting a worksite.

12.6 Pupil Transportation

- 12.6.1 No unit members shall be requested or required to transport pupils in private vehicles.
- 12.6.2 Should the District request or require that a unit member transport a pupil or pupils in a vehicle owned by the District, the District shall provide full primary liability coverage for any liability which may occur during such assignment. Unit members shall be provided with documentation of primary liability coverage which shall be carried in the vehicle during such assignment.
- 12.6.3 Unit members shall follow procedures outlined in AR 3542.1(a) see Appendix H

ARTICLE 13 – LEAVES

(Negotiated as part of 2023-24 Bargaining Cycle)

13.1 General provisions

- 13.1.1 Leave: Specific period of time off, after which unit member will return to teaching position.
- An extension of any leave of not more than two (2) years may be granted with written request prior to March 1st of the year preceding the one in which the extension of leave is to occur.
- 13.1.3 Unit members on leave shall retain seniority for all purposes where seniority is a factor. No leave shall constitute a break in a unit member's continuity of service.
- 13.1.4 A written statement from a physician that the unit member is physically and mentally fit to return to duty may be required of any unit member who has been on leave for health related reasons.
- 13.1.5 Upon return from leave, a unit member shall return to a teaching position.
- 13.1.6 See: The Family Care and Medical Leave Act and The Industrial Illness and Accident Leave Act, which are on file in the District Office.

13.2 Sick Leave

- 13.2.1 Full-time/full-year unit members shall be entitled to ten (10) working days of leave, with pay, each school year for purposes of illness, injury, or physical incapacity. Unit members working less than full-time/full-year shall be entitled to sick leave on a pro-rated basis.
 - 13.2.1.1 A maximum of seven (7) days of annual accrued sick leave is allowable for personal necessity leave. In the case of less than full time/full year unit members, 70% of the annual accrued sick leave is available as personal necessity leave. Example: 50% work contract accrues 5 days of annual sick leave, 3 ½ days would be allowable as personal necessity leave.
 - 13.2.1.2 A unit member may use five (5) days allowable for personal necessity leave for personal reasons with no explanation to the District.

The remaining two (2) days of personal necessity leave may be used for the following reasons:

- Illness of an immediate family member.
- Death of a member of his/her immediate family when additional leave is required beyond that provided as bereavement leave.
- Accident involving his/her person or property, or the person or property of a member of his/her immediate family.
- Appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a

- litigant, party, or witness under subpoena or any order made with jurisdiction.
- Imminent danger to the unit member's home, occasioned by an event such as flood, fire, or earthquake.
- Absences due to causes beyond the unit member's control, such as those caused by storm, flood or other acts of nature.
- Illness of a child
- 13.2.1.3 To request personal necessity leave the unit member shall submit a request to the Principal five (5) working days prior to the leave date(s) being requested using the absence management system.
- 13.2.1.4 The unit member shall not be required to secure advance permission for personal necessity leave taken for any of the following reasons:
 - Death or serious illness of a member of the unit member's immediate family as defined under 13.4.3 Bereavement Leave.
 - Accident involving the unit member's person or property or the property of a member of the unit member's immediate household.
 - Imminent danger to the unit member's home, occasioned by an event such as flood, fire, or earthquake.
 - Absences due to causes beyond the unit member's control, such as those caused by storm, flood or other acts of nature.
 - Illness of a child
- 13.2.1.5 Although advanced permission is not required, unit members must notify the District upon learning of the reason for the leave and complete the Request for Short Term Leave form upon returning to work.
- 13.2.2 Any unit member who has exhausted his/her sick leave days and has not applied for catastrophic leave (as defined in 13.3) is entitled to differential pay for up to one-hundred (100) days.
- 13.2.3 A unit member shall enter their absence in the absence management system as soon as the need to be absent is known. If an emergency occurs after 6 AM, the unit member shall immediately contact the site administrator who will subsequently file the absence in the absence management system.
- 13.2.4 Upon request by the District, a unit member who has used five (5) consecutive days of sick leave in any year may be required to present a medical doctor's certificate verifying the personal illness or injury and/or medical authorization to return to work unless used for personal necessity days.
 - 13.2.5 If an illness or injury exceeds ten (10) consecutive days, the District may require a certified medical specialist, selected and reimbursed by the District to examine the unit member, verify the nature and severity of the illness or injury, and report such finding to the District. If requested by the District, a unit member shall not return to work until he/she submits a medical doctor's authorization to work (selected and reimbursed by the District).

- 13.2.6 A unit member who is absent for one-half (1/2) day or less shall have deducted one-half (1/2) day from sick leave, if the absence exceeds one-half (1/2) day, a full day shall be deducted from the accumulated sick leave. After returning from sick leave during the course of the school year, a unit member shall return to the original position.
- 13.2.7 The District shall inform each unit member of the number of days of their current accumulated sick leave by October 1st of each year.
- Unused sick leave shall be cumulative without limit. The full year's credit of current sick leave shall be available on the first day of contracted service, with accumulated sick leave added to it. Sick leave accumulated in other California school districts shall be transferred in accordance with Education Code 44979. Upon retirement, the unit member's accrued sick leave, if any, may be applied towards service credit, in accordance with the State Teachers' Retirement System regulations.

13.3 Catastrophic Sick Leave

- "Catastrophic illness" or "injury" means an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate the unit member for an extended period of time, or that incapacitates a member of the unit member's family such that the unit member must take time off from work for an extended period of time to care for that family member, and taking extended time off work creates a financial hardship for the unit member because he/she has exhausted all of his/her sick leave.
- 13.3.2 The District shall establish a Catastrophic Leave Bank to which all unit members may donate earned and unused sick leave days. This donation shall be irrevocable, and shall be accomplished by the unit member filing a "Catastrophic Leave Bank Donation Form," (see Appendix K), with Human Resources.
- 13.3.3 The use of the Catastrophic Leave Bank shall only be available to those eligible unit members who have made a donation of at least one (1) day yearly to the bank prior to their request.
- 13.3.4 New Enrollments: A Catastrophic Leave Bank Donation form, see Appendix K, will be included in the employment packet for newly hired certificated persons. Newly hired unit members who decide to participate shall return a signed enrollment form to Human Resources by October 1st of the current school year or within 30 days of employment. A unit member who is a returning employee but did not participate in the Catastrophic Leave Bank in prior years may submit a Catastrophic Leave Bank Donation form to the Human Resource department by October 1st stating that he/she would like to enroll in the Catastrophic Leave Bank and will contribute one day of the current year's allotment of sick leave.
- 13.3.5 Membership in the Catastrophic Leave Bank is continuous from year to year. Unless a member submits a letter of cancellation, it will be assumed that he/she wishes to

- continue to participate.
- 13.3.6 Unit members who no longer want to participate must cancel their membership by submitting written notification to the Human Resource department by October 1st of the current school year. The unit member shall not be eligible to draw from the Catastrophic Leave Bank as of the effective date of cancellation. Sick leave previously authorized for contribution to the Catastrophic Leave Bank shall not be returned
- 13.3.7 Unit members wishing to use the Catastrophic Leave Bank shall submit a "Catastrophic Leave Bank Request for Withdrawal Form" (see Appendix L). This form shall be submitted for review to Human Resources and the Board. The request shall clearly state the catastrophe and the amount of catastrophic leave requested. Appropriate written verification of the catastrophic illness or injury must be included with the request. The unit member should be prepared to provide additional documentation if requested.
- 13.3.8 A Catastrophic Leave Bank Committee shall consider the request of the unit member. The Committee shall consist of the Superintendent or designee and three (3) unit members selected by the Association President. The Committee may grant, reject, or partially grant a request. Any rejection of a request may be appealed to the Association Executive Board for final action and decision. The Committee shall keep all records confidential and shall not disclose the nature of the illness, except as necessary to process the request for withdrawal, and defend against any appeals of denials.
- 13.3.9 The methods by which the District/Committee shall compensate any unit member who has qualified for catastrophic sick leave shall occur in the following order:
 - 13.3.9.1 The unit member's accumulated sick leave balance shall be exhausted,
 - 13.3.9.2 Donations from the Catastrophic Leave Bank up to a maximum of sixty (60) days,
 - 13.3.9.3 Unit member may request additional days up to thirty (30) days by filing a request for consideration to the Committee,
 - 13.3.9.4 Differential pay for up to 100 days,
 - 13.3.9.5 Leave without pay.
- 13.3.10 The Committee may issue an additional "Call for Catastrophic Leave Donations" whenever the Catastrophic Leave Bank has fewer days than are requested. If the Catastrophic Leave Bank does not have sufficient days to fund a withdrawal request, the Committee is under no obligation to provide days and the District is under no obligation to pay the participant any funds whatsoever. If the Committee denies a request for withdrawal, or an extension of withdrawal, because of insufficient days to fund the request, they shall notify the participant, in writing, of the reason for the denial.
- 13.3.11 A unit member who receives paid sick leave pursuant to this section shall use any leave days that he/she continues to accrue on a monthly basis prior to receiving paid leave pursuant to this section
- 13.3.12 Catastrophic leave days shall not be used for illness or disability which qualifies the participant for Workers Compensation benefits.

- 13.3.13 Catastrophic Leave days shall not be considered available leave for purposes of qualifying for STRS disability
- 13.3.14 Donated Catastrophic Leave days are awarded to the participant at a one to one (1:1) ratio of donated days to paid sick leave days. Furthermore, the District shall pay the participant full pay for any donated days.
- 13.3.15 Any excess catastrophic leave days donated beyond those used by the requesting unit member shall be held in the Catastrophic Leave Bank for use of future requests.
- 13.3.16 Days shall be contributed to the Catastrophic Leave Bank and granted from the Catastrophic Leave Bank without regard to the daily rate of pay of the unit member.
- 13.3.17 No unit member may donate sick leave days unless they have a minimum of ten(10) days of accumulated sick leave except in their first year of employment.
- 13.3.18 If the number of days in the Catastrophic Leave Bank, at the end of a school year, exceeds 200, no contribution shall be required of returning unit members. Unit members, however, who have drawn from the bank and have subsequently been able to return to work shall continue contributing one day per year to the Catastrophic Leave Bank until the amount withdrawn shall be repaid or until the unit member has terminated employment in the District. Unit members joining the Catastrophic Leave Bank for the first time, and those returning from leave, shall be required to contribute one (1) day per year to the Catastrophic Leave Bank until they have contributed at least five (5) days.
- 13.3.19 The Catastrophic Leave Committee shall have the responsibility of maintaining the records of the Catastrophic Leave Bank and will meet annually.
- 13.3.20 By November 10 of each school year, the District shall notify the Association President of the following
 - 13.3.20.1 The total number of accumulated days in the Catastrophic Leave Bank on June 30th of the previous school year.
 - 13.3.20.2 The number of days contributed by the unit members for the current year.
 - 13.3.20.3 The names of non-participating unit members.
 - 13.3.20.4 The total number of days available in the Catastrophic Leave Bank.
 - 13.3.20.5 Names of any unit members who have canceled participation.
- 13.3.21 If the Catastrophic Leave Bank is terminated for any reason, the days remaining in the Catastrophic Leave Bank shall be equitable distributed to the then current members of the Catastrophic Leave Bank according to the following distribution formula: Total number of days divided by current active participants.

13.3.22 The Association will conduct an initial enrollment period for the Catastrophic Leave Bank program starting on September 15, 2010, and ending October 15, 2010. The Association will solicit donations of days from eligible unit members in accordance with this article on the appropriate form, thereafter enrollment will be driven by the provision in 13.3.4.

13.4 Bereavement Leave

- 13.4.1 Each unit member is entitled to five (5) days of paid bereavement leave for the death of any member of his/her immediate family. Bereavement leave is not to be deducted from salary or sick leave.
- 13.4.2 To request bereavement leave, the unit member will notify the District substitute caller as soon as possible and indicate that bereavement leave is necessary.
- 13.4.3 Immediate family includes mother, father, step-parent, grandparent, child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or sibling of unit member or of the unit member's spouse/significant other, the spouse/significant other of the unit member, or any person living or who has lived under the guardianship of or in the immediate household of the unit member.

13.5 Pregnancy Disability Leave

- 13.5.1 Disability due to pregnancy shall be treated as any other temporary disability. A unit member may use sick leave (Article 13.2) for temporary disability due to pregnancy and childbirth as determined by the unit member and her health care provider.
- 13.5.2 A unit member who has exhausted all sick leave may be eligible for leave without pay but with benefits under the Federal and/or California Family Leave Medical Act.
- 13.5.3 The unit member shall retain seniority for salary increments and all other purposes where seniority is a factor; the absence shall not be construed as a break in service. Upon return, during the same school year, the unit member will return to the same position held prior to the leave.

13.6 Maternity/Paternity Leave

- As per California Education Code section 44977.5, certificated employees are entitled to use up to twelve (12) weeks of sick leave for maternity or paternity leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA).
- 13.6.2 After all available leave is exhausted, including all accumulated sick leave, eligible unit members are entitled to use differential leave for the remainder of the twelve (12) weeks.

13.7 Childbirth/Adoption Leave

13.7.1 A unit member shall be allowed three (3) days of leave with full pay for the birth or adoption of a child. Such leave shall not be deducted from sick leave.

13.7.2 An additional five (5) days shall be granted to the unit member for the birth or adoption of a child if requested. The additional five (5) days shall be deducted from sick leave.

13.8 Child Care Leave

- 13.8.1 Subject to the laws and regulations establishing and implementing the California Family Medical Leave Act, a unit member shall be granted up to twelve (12) weeks of leave without pay but with benefits within the twelve (12) month period following the birth or adoption of a child.
- 13.8.2 A unit member may apply in writing for an unpaid leave at any time for the purpose of child care. Such leave may be granted for the duration of the school year in which the leave is first taken and for up to one (1) additional school yearProfessional and Service Leaves/Teacher on Special Assignment

13.9 Professional and Service Leaves / Teacher on Special Assignment

- 13.9.1 Leaves of absence without pay and Teachers on Special Assignment must be submitted to the superintendent and may be approved by the Board for: professional study, completion of credential requirements in a full time program, for service in a full-time elected public office, for research, teaching or lecturing under a nationally recognized fellowship or foundation, or for cooperative work in an institution of higher education. The Board may grant full or part time leaves when necessary in meeting District staffing needs, as in the case of a full time permanent employee transferring to a part time position to meet a District need. In such cases the eligibility, application deadline, and notification of return requirements shall not apply. The Board may consider other reasons or circumstances in consideration of District needs.
- A unit member must be classified as permanent before being granted a
 Professional/Service Leave or being designated as a Teacher on Special Assignment by
 the Board except for basic credential fulfillment for his/her current teaching position.
 The intent to request and renew a Professional/Service Leave or Special Assignment
 must be submitted in writing by March 1st.
- 13.9.3 Professional/Service Leaves shall be without compensation, but other rights and benefits, such as tenure, seniority, former school, sick leave accrual, salary placement, and retirement benefits which were accumulated during prior service in the District, shall be retained. The unit member shall receive annual step increment(s) during a Professional/Service Leave.

13.10 Overseas Teaching Leave

13.10.1 Permanent unit members may apply in writing for leaves for a period not to exceed one (1) school year for the purpose of accepting an appropriate overseas teaching assignment, or two (2) years for teaching assignments in the Peace Corps. This leave shall be without compensation. However, the unit member shall receive annual step increment(s) during the leave.

13.11 Sabbatical Leaves

- 13.11.1 Sabbatical leaves may be granted to full-time unit members for travel, advance study, or research appropriate to the assignment of the applicant.
- 13.11.2 Applicants for sabbatical leave must have served at least seven (7) continuous years in the District.
- 13.11.3 A panel, consisting of one unit member, one administrator, and one Board member, will evaluate sabbatical leave applications. Following evaluation by the panel, the District shall determine the recipient(s) of sabbatical leave.
- 13.11.4 Sabbatical leaves will be granted for a period of one (1) year or one-half (1/2) year. The rate of pay for a unit member on sabbatical leave shall be 50% of the salary he/she would have received and full fringe benefits. The unit member on sabbatical leave will be credited with a full year of teaching experience for advancement on the salary schedule. A sabbatical leave will not constitute a break in continuity of service.
- 13.11.5 The terms and conditions of the sabbatical leave shall be stated in writing and shall include, but not be limited to, (1) a stipulation to a post-leave service of no less than two (2) full years, (2) an indemnification bond to insure successful completion of the sabbatical program (i.e., what is to be studied, and how it will relate to the unit member's professional growth), and (3) appropriate reporting procedure, such as a detailed report or a workshop, as may be designated by the District prior to acceptance of the sabbatical.
- 13.11.6 In case of injury or illness to the unit member during the sabbatical leave, which prevents completion of the sabbatical program as determined by the unit member, the leave may be terminated, and all provisions for sick leave will apply.
- 13.11.7 At the expiration of a sabbatical leave, the unit member will be reinstated to a teaching position in the District.

13.12 Judicial Leave

- 13.12.1 Unit members shall be provided leave when called for jury duty service or to serve as a subpoenaed witness in a judicial proceeding.
- 13.12.2 Unit members required by the courts to take judicial leave shall inform the Principal or Superintendent upon notification by the court.

13.12.3 Unit members on judicial leave shall receive their regular earnings. Any fee and/or earning received for jury duty or as a subpoenaed witness shall be endorsed to the District. Unit members shall keep mileage reimbursement received from the court.

13.13 Business and Conferences

- 13.13.1 When authorized by the District, unit members may be sent to conferences, workshops, institutes, school visits, or meetings directly related to their professional responsibilities. Such leaves shall not be more than five (5) consecutive work days in duration.
- 13.13.2 Expenses for such leave may be reimbursed at the District per diem rate, may be partly reimbursed, or may be without reimbursement.
- 13.13.3 The unit member shall not suffer loss of salary, and the days shall not be deducted from accumulated sick leave.

13.14 Military Leave

- 13.14.1 Any unit member who is a member of the reserve corps of the Armed Forces of the United States, National Guard, or the Naval Militia shall be entitled to a temporary military leave of absence while engaged in military duty ordered for purposes of military training, drills, encampment, naval cruises, special exercises, or like activity as such member, providing the period of ordered duty does not exceed one-hundred and eighty (180) calendar days, including time involved in going to and returning from such duty.
- 13.14.2 All unit members drafted for military service or ordered to active service with reserve components shall be granted a leave of absence without pay.
- 13.14.3 Upon return, during the same school year, the unit member will return to the same position held prior to the leave.

13.15 Religious Holidays and Observance

13.15.1 Members of the bargaining unit shall be granted three (3) days during the year for required observance of a recognized religious denomination when such observance is not possible outside working hours. These leaves shall be deducted from accumulated sick days.

13.16 Leave for Medical Examinations Required by the District

13.16.1 A unit member may be absent without loss of sick leave for the time necessary to secure any medical examination required by the District, except for the initial employment examination. The cost of such examination shall be borne by the District.

13.17 Quarantine

13.17.1 Unit members absent due to exposure to a communicable disease for which the Health Department may require isolation, but who are not themselves ill, shall receive full pay for so long as the Health Department shall require isolation. Such absence shall not be deducted from accrued sick leave.

13.18 Association Leave (Released Time)

13.18.1 At the Association's request, the District shall grant full or part-time leave to a person designated by the Association, in accordance with Ed Code 44987. The District shall pay the salary and benefits the designee would have received at full-time employment and the Association shall reimburse the District for pro-rata portion of the contract.

13.19 Additional Leaves of Absence

- 13.19.1 Whenever it becomes necessary for a unit member to request leave for reasons other than those allowed in other provisions of this agreement, the unit member may submit his/her case, in writing, to the District at least ten (10) days prior to the next scheduled board meeting.
 - 13.19.1.1 If the duration of a Leave of Absence will be five (5) days or less, a request can be made directly to the Principal. The request shall be submitted at least five (5) days in advance of the leave request. The Principal shall forward the request to the Superintendent with a recommendation. The Superintendent may grant or deny the request.
- 13.19.2 The District may authorize excused absence with full, partial or no compensation. The District shall convey its decision, in writing, to the unit member at least five (5) days from the date of the scheduled board meeting. This decision letter will include an outline of the date by which the unit member must notify the District of his/her intentions for the following year. If granted with partial compensation, deduction from the unit member's salary for the absence shall be no more than the amount paid to the unit member's substitute during the absence.
- 13.19.3 Unit members on Leaves of Absence longer than 60 calendar days must notify the District of their intentions for the next school year by March 1st. Failure to respond by this date may result in the District terminating the contract of the unit member.

ARTICLE 14 - PART-TIME TEACHING AND SHARED CONTRACTS

14.1 General Provisions

- 14.1.1 Unit members in part time service or rendering services under a part time or shared contract shall have all rights and privileges afforded full time unit members under this contract.
- 14.1.2 The salary and fringe benefits paid by the District to a part time or shared contract unit member shall be a proportional ratio of the salary and benefits he/she would have earned as a full-time unit member. The proportional ratio is equal to the FTE of the unit member.
- 14.1.3 All part-time/shared contract unit members will be placed on the Certificated Salary Schedule (appendix A) on the appropriate Step and Column. He/she will receive the appropriate percent of the corresponding salary plus the full stipend for a qualifying specialist credential and Master's degree.
- 14.1.4 A unit member on part time service or shared contract shall receive credit for salary schedule advancement as follows:
 - 14.1.4.1 Service at .50 FTE or more shall qualify the unit member to advance one vertical step each year.
 - 14.1.4.2 The unit member working less than .50 FTE shall receive one-half year's credit for advancement on the salary schedule, advancing one vertical step every other year.
- 14.1.5 A unit member on part time service or shared contract shall be granted tenure as follows:
 - 14.1.5.1 Unit members serving a minimum of 75% of the teacher workdays in two consecutive school years are granted tenure on the first teacher workday of the third year.
 - 14.1.5.2 Unit members on shared or reduced contracts will be granted tenure after completing 368 workdays. The unit member becomes tenured on the first day of the year following the 368 days worked.

14.2 Part-Time and Shared Teaching Contract

14.2.1 Unit member Initiated

- 14.2.1.1 Requests for part-time/shared teaching shall be made through the Principal and are due on or before February 1st.
- 14.2.1.2 If the part time or shared contract is requested in subsequent school years, the unit member(s) will retain employment rights only to the part time or shared contract assignment FTE going forward. These unit members may apply for full time vacancies if in future school years should they wish to return to full time status.
- 14.2.1.3 After the first year of a part time or shared contract, unit members may return to full time service, provided a request to do so has been filed on or before February 1st, with the District through the Principal. Receipt of the request shall be promptly acknowledged in writing to the unit member.

14.2.2 District Initiated

14.2.2.1 When the District initiates a part time/shared teaching assignment, the part time unit member shall be provided prorated full time unit member health and welfare benefits as other bargaining unit members.

14.3 Conditions

- 14.3.1 The unit members sharing a contract shall meet/communicate regularly for the purposes of joint planning, student and program assessment, preparing for SST/IEP/504 meetings and/or discussing any decisions made, and debriefing class/student progress, general school business and information from staff/grade meetings.
- 14.3.2 Both unit members are required to attend all Teacher in-service/staff development workdays prior to the first day of school, as well as all the days of the first week of school, and the very last day of school.
- 14.3.3 Both unit members are required to attend parent teacher conferences, Back-To-School-Night, Open-House and one other evening program.
- 14.3.4 At the beginning of the school year, both unit members shall mutually divide the school calendar as to be proportionate to their contracts, as consistent as possible for students, and fair to both unit members (in terms of holidays, in-service/staff development days, consistency, etc.). The calendar shall be provided to the Principal.

- 14.3.5 For the purposes of yard duty schedules and other similar responsibilities, the two unit members together shall have the equivalent amount of duty and responsibilities of any one unit member not dividing a contract.
- 14.3.6 All part-time/shared assignment members will cover all planned absences of teaching team when possible.
- 14.3.7 All part-time/shared assignments will be subject to Board approval.

ARTICLE 15 - FRINGE BENEFITS

15.1 Health, Dental and Vision Coverage

- 15.1.1 The District shall provide a comprehensive benefits package which includes medical, dental, vision, orthodontia, and prescription benefits, to unit members and their eligible dependents.
 - 15.1.1.1 Part time unit members shall be provided pro-rated full time unit member health and welfare benefit as other bargaining unit members.
- 15.1.2 Seven medical plans are offered through SISC III. The plan names are:
 - Blue Cross PPO 100A-10
 - Blue Cross PPO 90A-20
 - Blue Cross PPO 80G-30
 - Blue Cross PPO 80L-30
 - Blue Cross HSA \$3,000
 - Blue Cross HSA \$5,000
 - Blue Cross Two Tier HSA \$5,000 This plan does not include dental, orthodontic or vision coverage
- 15.1.3. Members participating in the Blue Cross Two Tier HSA Plan are eligible for the Waiver of Anchor Bronze Enrollment (WABE) option in lieu of the Anchor Bronze plan. This would allow the member to participate fully in another plan outside of the district to alleviate the prescription cost conflict.
- 15.1.4 All unit members are covered by a dental and vision plan. The plan details for these coverage's are:
 - Delta Dental Incentive Plan, \$1500 annual maximum with 3rd cleaning option and orthodontic coverage for child or adult limited to \$2000 lifetime.
 - Vision Service Plan \$10 co-pay Plan C (annual exam, lenses and frames)
- 15.1.5 The District shall pay \$14,500 per year towards the benefit package for full time unit members; unit members shall pay the difference between the District's contribution and the actual premium. All excess premiums shall be deducted by means of a monthly payroll deduction over the ten month pay schedule.
 - 15.1.5.1 In the event that a rebate is issued from the provider the insurance policies to the district due to provisions in the Affordable Care Act, the funds will be distributed in the following manner. The amount of money over \$14,500 on the district's healthcare contribution paid by all district bargaining units (including the district itself as per 15.4.1) will be calculated. This amount shall be referred to as "excess health care savings". Certificated unit members will be entitled to a percentage of the rebate equal to their percentage of the monies paid in excess health care savings. If a unit member has paid no excess health care savings, then that unit member is

not eligible for any rebate. The District and its unions will negotiate the distribution of funds.

- 15.1.6 The district shall calculate, distribute, and notify unit members of any such amounts TWO months after any rebate check is received by the district.
- 15.1.7 Unit members who choose a District health plan costing less than the \$14,500 District contribution may take the net savings (District contribution minus plan premium) as the Cash Back Benefit.
- 15.1.8 Cash Back Benefit dollars shall be allocated to the unit member over the ten month pay schedule.
- 15.1.9 Cash Back Benefit dollars may be utilized by the unit member as pre-tax dollars to participate in a Tax Sheltered Account (TSA).
- 15.1.10 Cash Back Benefit dollars may be paid to the member directly. In this circumstance, the Cash Back Benefit payment received shall be considered taxable income. Both the District and the unit member would be liable for applicable taxes as with any other salary disbursement.

15.2 Retired and On Leave Unit Members

- 15.2.4 The District shall allow for all unit members on unpaid leave of absence to remain members of the insurance group (when permitted by the carrier) upon the payment of the premium by the unit member. The District shall offer the medical, dental, and vision benefits to unit members on Sabbatical Leave for a monthly premium.
- 15.2.5 The District shall offer the same medical, dental, and vision plan choices for all retired unit members as provided to regularly employed unit members from ages 60 to 65 if the unit member has served the District for at least 10 years. The District will pay up to a maximum annual contribution of \$14,500 towards the benefit package of a qualified retired unit member.
- 15.2.6 As per the plan provider requirement, all retirees benefit premium costs will be subject to the Tiered (Single, Two Party, or Family) Rate Schedule.
- 15.2.7 For those unit members who have worked in the District for 10 years as of July 1, 2004, benefits for retirees shall be offered up to age 65 based upon the following schedule:
 - Age 55 and 20 years in District,
 - Age 56 and 19 years in District,
 - Age 57 and 18 years in District,
 - Age 58-59 and 17 years in District.
- 15.2.8 Retirees wishing to receive Health Benefits must be currently enrolled in the Health Benefit plans at the time of retirement.

15.3 Duration of Benefits

- 15.3.4 Unit members who are employed during the last month of a school year, currently enrolled with a health care package, shall continue to be provided the District's compensation benefits package through August 31.
- 15.3.5 Unit members who are initially employed subsequent to the first day of the school year shall be eligible for coverage on the first day of the month following the month in which service begins.
- 15.3.6 Unit members who terminate their employment prior to the close of the school year shall be provided benefits through the last day of the payroll period in which the termination occurred.
- 15.3.7 Unit members who are absent on account of illness shall continue to receive benefits as defined in the Family Medical Leave Act.
- 15.3.8 Unit members who would have otherwise been eligible for fringe benefits if they retired under normal or early STRS retirements are eligible for the same retirement fringe benefits if the unit member uses STRS disability retirement.
- 15.3.9 The determination of eligibility for health and welfare benefits shall not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, or marital status.
- 15.3.10 Unit members may continue their health and welfare benefits at member's expense after termination of employment based on COBRA eligibility. Such member shall pay the full premium for continued coverage on a month-to-month basis directly to the plan provider, the COBRA program manager.
- 15.3.11 All unit members have the option to enroll in the SISC Flexible Spending Account. This allows for tax exemption of out-of-pocket medical expenses. Please see Human Resources for additional information.

ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCES

The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level equitable solutions to the problems that may from time to time arise affecting the welfare or working conditions of unit members and the Association. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.

16.1 Definitions

- 16.1.1 A "grievance" is an allegation by one or more unit members or the Association that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of a provision of this Agreement.
- A "grievant" is the person or persons making the claim. When requested to do so by a clearly defined group of unit members, the Association may be the "grievant" in instances where an alleged contract violation affects more than one member of the bargaining unit.
- 16.1.3 A "Representative" is anyone, including an attorney, whom a "Grievant" selects to speak for and/or advise him or her.
- 16.1.4 A "Day" is any duty day in which the grievant is required by contract to render service.

16.2 Procedure

16.2.1 **Level One Informal Grievance**

16.2.1.1 Within 10 work days after the event that was the basis for the grievance, or within 10 work days of the time when the grievant reasonably should have known of the event that gave rise to the grievance, the grievant shall notify, in writing, his/her Principal of the potential grievance and shall request a face-to-face meeting. At the grievant's option, the grievant may be accompanied by an Association representative during this meeting. The objective of this meeting shall be to resolve the matter informally. This meeting is to occur within 5 days of the request for the meeting. In the event the matter is not resolved informally, the following procedure shall be implemented:

16.2.2 **Level Two Principal**

16.2.2.1 If the grievance is not settled at the informal level, the grievant, within 15 work days shall submit a written statement of the grievance to his/her Principal. The statement shall include a clear, concise statement of the grievance, the circumstances involved, the decision rendered at the informal conference, the specific remedy sought, and the date of the alleged act or omission. The grievance shall be submitted using the grievance form (see Appendix J). The grievant shall discuss the matter with his/her Principal and may be accompanied by a representative of the Association. If the grievant prefers to represent himself or herself, a copy of the grievance will be sent to the Association.

16.2.2.2 Within 10 work days after receiving the grievance, the Principal shall state his/her decision in writing, together with supporting reasons and shall forward the decision to the Association and to the grievant. If the Principal does not respond within the timelines, the grievance shall proceed automatically to the next step. The timelines may be extended by mutual agreement.

16.2.3 **LevelThreeSuperintendent**

- 16.2.3.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Two or if no written decision has been rendered within 10 days after receipt of the grievance, the grievant may file a written appeal of the grievance with the Superintendent, with a copy to the Association within 10 days after the written decision at Level.
- 16.2.3.2 Within 10 work days after delivery of the appeal, the Superintendent or his/her designee will confer with the grievant in an effort to resolve the problem. An Association representative may be present at this conference. Within 10 work days after the grievance conference, the Superintendent/designee shall submit his/her decision in writing, together with the supporting reasons to the Association with a copy to the grievant and a copy to the Principal involved in Level Two.

16.2.4 Level Four Board of Trustees

- 16.2.4.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, or if no written decision has been rendered within 10 days after the conference with the Superintendent/designee, the grievant, within 10 days after the Superintendent's decision, may request in writing that the Association submit the grievance to the Board.
- 16.2.4.2 Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the appeal, the Board shall hold a hearing. All parties involved shall mutually agree upon the time. The hearing shall be held in closed session to the extent permitted by law, unless by mutual agreement with the grievant and the Board.

16.2.5 **Level Five Mediation**

- 16.2.5.1 If the grievant and/or the Association are not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, or if no disposition has occurred within ten (10) days pursuant to the provisions of Level Four, the grievance shall be referred to grievance mediation.
- 16.2.5.2 The Association shall request that a conciliator/mediator from the California State Mediation/Conciliation Service be assigned to assist the parties in the resolution of the grievance.
- 16.2.5.3 The mediator, shall meet with the grievant, the Association and the District for the purpose of resolving the grievance in a timely manner.

- 16.2.5.4 If an agreement is reached, the agreement shall be reduced to writing and shall be signed by the grievant, the Association and the District. This agreement shall be non-precedential and shall constitute a settlement of the grievance.
- 16.2.5.5 In the event that the grievant, the Association and the Superintendent or her/his designee have not resolved the grievance with the assistance of the conciliator/mediator within ten (10) days from the first meeting held by the conciliator/mediator, the Association may terminate Level Five and the grievance may proceed to Level Six.
- 16.2.5.6 All costs, except for released-time for the grievant(s), Association representative(s), and witnesses, shall be borne by the party incurring them.

16.2.6 **Level Six Binding Arbitration**

- 16.2.6.1 If the Association proceeds to arbitration, it shall notify the District in writing. Within ten (10) days of such notification, representatives of the District and the Association shall attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator from CSM/SC and obtain a commitment from said arbitrator to serve.
- 16.2.6.2 The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall set forth the findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions of the issues submitted. The arbitrator will be without power or authority to make any decision that requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is violate of the terms of this Agreement. Nor shall the arbitrator have power to alter, amend, add to or subtract from any of the terms of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator shall be submitted to the Association and the District within thirty (30) days after the matter is submitted, and will be final and binding upon the parties.
- 16.2.6.3 If any question arises as to the ability to arbitrate the grievance, such question will be ruled upon by the arbitrator only after she/he has had an opportunity to hear the merits of the grievance.
- 16.2.6.4 All costs for the services of the arbitrator, including but not limited to, per diem expenses, travel and subsistence expenses, and the cost, if any, of a hearing room, shall be borne equally by the District and the Association. All other costs, except for released-time for the grievant(s), Association representative(s), and witnesses, shall be borne by the party incurring them.

16.3 TimeLimits

- 16.3.1 Time limits provided for at each level shall begin the day following receipt of the grievance appeal or written decision.
- 16.3.2 Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limits specified at each level should be considered the maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits may, however, be extended in writing by mutual agreement.

- 16.3.3 In the event a grievance is filed at such a time that it cannot be processed through all the steps by the end of the school year, and if left unresolved harms a grievant, the time limits set forth herein shall be reduced by mutual agreement so that the procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school year or as soon as is practicable.
- 16.3.4 Grievances related to safety shall commence at Level Two with simultaneous notification to the Superintendent.

16.4 Rights of Representation

16.4.1 A grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance by an Association representative(s).

16.5 No Reprisals

16.5.1 No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the District or by any member or representative of the administration or the Board against any grievant, any party in interest, any unit member, the Association, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

16.6 Miscellaneous

- 16.6.1 The Association, either in its own behalf or in behalf of more than one affected unit member at more than one school site, may initiate a grievance at Level Three.
- 16.6.2 If a grievance arises from action or inaction of the District at a level above the principal or immediate supervisor, the grievant shall submit such grievance in writing directly to the Superintendent and the Association with the processing of such grievance to commence at Level Three.
- When it is necessary for a unit member to attend a grievance meeting during the school day the unit member will, upon notice to the superintendent, be released without loss of pay or benefits, subject to reasonable District needs. Any unit member whose appearance as a witness is required will be accorded the same right. An Association representative investigating a grievance shall reimburse the District for any cost associated with missing work or finding a substitute.
- 16.6.4 All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and will not be kept in the personnel file of any unit member.
- 16.6.5 Forms for filing grievances, serving notices, taking appeals, making reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents shall be prepared jointly by the District and Association and given appropriate distribution so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.
- 16.6.6 Upon mutual agreement of the Association and the District, a grievance may be

taken directly to arbitration.

A unit member may at any time present grievances to the District, and have such grievances adjusted, without the intervention of the Association, as long as the adjustment is reached prior to arbitration and such adjustment is not inconsistent with terms of the written agreement. If any employee presents a grievance on her/his own behalf, the Association shall have the right to be present and state its views at all grievance meetings. The District shall not agree to a resolution of the grievance until the Association has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed resolution and has been given the opportunity to file a response.

16.7 Expedited Arbitration

By mutual agreement of the parties, the arbitration may be held under the Expedited Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Notice of such option shall accompany the Demand for Arbitration.

ARTICLE 17 - CLASS SIZE

17.1 Class Size Maximums

- 17.1 The District shall make reasonable effort to keep the following class maximums for the following grade levels:
 - 17.1.1 Transitional Kindergarten (TK) through third grade unit members shall not exceed 24 pupils per class.
 - 17.1.2 Fourth grade through eighth grade unit members shall not exceed 32 pupils per class or an average of 30 pupils per class district wide.
 - 17.1.3 Ninth grade through twelfth grade unit members shall not exceed 34 students in any class.
 - 17.1.4 Physical Education classes in Middle School and High School shall not exceed more than 65 pupils per unit member's class.
 - 17.1.5 Elementary school unit members with an official roster of students exceeding the class size limits for more than fifteen (15) consecutive instructional days (beginning after the first four weeks of school) within a trimester shall receive a stipend of \$200 per trimester as listed in Appendix B. Unit members shall be notified by email in the month in which this amount is paid.
 - 17.1.5.1 Elementary school combination grade level classes, including Dual Immersion, shall be kept at a minimum as much as possible. Elementary school unit members assigned to a combination grade shall receive a stipend as listed in Appendix B an additional \$200 per trimester.
 - 17.1.5.2 Elementary school Dual Immersion combination grade level classes shall be kept at a minimum as much as possible. Elementary school unit members assigned a Dual Immersion combination grade shall receive an additional \$300 per trimester.
 - 17.1.6 High school unit members with any roster of students exceeding the class size limits for more than three (3) weeks (beginning after the first four weeks of school) within a semester shall receive a stipend of \$300 per semester as listed in Appendix B. Unit members shall be notified by email in the month in which this amount is paid.

17.2 TK-8 School Class Configuration

17.2.1 Unit members will jointly configure classes for the following school year.

Site Principals shall provide time to accomplish this task by May 31st.

- 17.2.2 Unit members shall have primary responsibility to balance classes based on: gender, behavior, academics, English language development levels, enrollment in District programs, and special needs. Should subsequent changes become necessary, every effort will be made to maintain the original balance. Unit members shall be notified of changes within seven calendar days or whenever reasonably possible. New students that enter a school site after the school year has begun will be assigned by the principal to a classroom in a numerically balanced manner based on current grade level class sizes.
 - 17.2.2.1 In the event that class size cannot be balanced, and the disparity is over five (5) students for more than thirty consecutive days the bargaining unit member shall receive a stipend of \$200 per trimester as listed in Appendix B Unit members will be notified in writing or by email at the time of payment.
- 17.2.3 Unit members assigned a combination class shall be given special consideration in the configuration of that class. Efforts will be made to group students according to achievement levels.

ARTICLE 18 - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

(Negotiated as part of 2023-24 Bargaining Cycle)

- 18.1 The District, in an effort to provide unit members with individualized professional development, will allow each unit member to have one (1) Individual Professional Development day (IPD) per school year, based on the criteria outlined as follows.
 - 18.1.1 This day is to be paid and does not count against any other leaves.
 - 18.1.1.1 If the professional development event falls outside the negotiated work calendar and is an in-person event, the unit member will be paid the daily rate of a substitute teacher.
 - 18.1.2 Any fees associated with the IPD day, be it registration, materials, or mileage shall be incurred by the District.
 - 18.1.2.1 Auto mileage shall be reimbursed at the standard business mile rate as set by the Internal Revenue Service for transportation expenses. Mileage reimbursement cannot exceed the cost of coach plane fare.
 - 18.1.3 The IPD day is for the purpose of professional development including attending conferences, seminars, workshops and observing other classroom settings both inside and outside the District.
 - 18.1.3.1 Such events may be in person or viewed online as a webinar or webcast.
 - 18.1.3.2 Visiting other educators' classrooms either within our District or neighboring districts will be permitted providing those classrooms are within 100 miles, allowing ample time for the professional development to be completed within the workday.
 - 18.1.4 District arranged professional development, be it District-wide, site specific, grade specific, etc., will not replace a unit member's IPD day.
 - 18.1.1 Unit members should make all efforts to submit a request to their direct supervisor at least 60 days prior to the IPD day.
 - 18.1.4.1 Unit members will submit their requests utilizing the IPD Approval form (Appendix D).
 - 18.1.4.2 Approval will be based on content appropriateness by supervisor and fund availability.
 - 18.1.5 Upon completion of the IPD day, the unit member will coordinate with their supervisor to present and share their results to the appropriate peer group.

18.2

18.2.1 **Professional Development Committee**: The District Director of Curriculum and Instruction will convene a committee to collaborate on a plan for professional development to benefit all employees who deliver and support instruction. The plan will be differentiated to support probationary and permanent employees in a variety of instructional roles. Any hours served on

this committee outside of contractual hours shall be paid at the teachers hourly rate

18.2.2 Bargaining unit members with more than two years teaching experience who are new to the district, will be required to meet one (1) day prior to the beginning of the school year for New Teacher Orientation. These bargaining unit members will have the option to attend the additional day of professional development.

Bargaining unit members new to the teaching profession will be required to meet two (2) days prior to the beginning of school for New Teacher Orientation and professional development organized by the Director of Curriculum and Instruction.

New Teacher Orientation activities may include but are not limited to Human Resources orientation, town and campus tours, classroom set up, training, and up to 1-hour of Union orientation.

Participants who attend one or both of the two days of New Teachers Orientation activities will be compensated with a stipend of \$300 per day.

During their first two years of employment, all probationary and temporary teachers will meet after school once a month for professional development on an early release day. Experienced teachers may request to be excused from professional development on topics for which they can demonstrate expertise.

ARTICLE 19 - SUMMER SCHOOL

19.1	Qualified unit members who wish to work in the District's summer school may apply under the provisions and procedures administered by the District.			
19.2	Qualified unit members currently employed by the District shall be given preference over applicants not employed by the District. Qualified permanent unit members shall be given preference over probationary unit members.			
19.3	A qualified unit member is one who is properly credentialed for the position to be filled and whose most recent evaluation in the subject to be taught is effective.			
19.4	The District shall circulate job announcements of potential summer school positions to be filled and receive applications by April 1 St . Summer School job announcements shall make reference to normal length of workday and shall include a copy of the summer school pay rate.			
19.5		Unit members shall be present at their assigned school of work location at least 15 minutes paid time before the time prescribed for their assignment.		
19.6	Preparation time is a professional time to prepare for teaching, to communicate with parents, and to collaborate, etc. Unit members shall receive 15 minutes of paid preparation time at the completion of their last class.			
19.7	A unit member will accrue one day of leave and may utilize no more than one day of leave in any summer school session. Any additional time off in that summer session shall be non-paid.			
19.8	The District shall determine qualification standards applicable to positions and shall determine qualifications of applicants against those standards.			
19.9	The District, in coordination with the Summer School Principal, shall fill summer school positions with mutually qualified unit members considering all of the following criteria.			
	19.9.1	Teaching effectiveness as reflected in most recent evaluation.		
	19.9.2	Length of service and specified grade level and/or subject area, as determined by records.		
	19.9.3	Recency of experience in specific grade level and/or subject area, as determined by records.		
19.10	Unit members scheduled to teach specific classes which are closed due to low enrollments will be given consideration for other vacancies that occur for which they are qualified. However, such unit members do not have priority over other unit members selected for, and notified of, summer school placement.			
19.11	Every effort will be made to place qualified unit members who apply for but who were not placed in previous summer school as equitably and fairly as possible.			

ARTICLE 20 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

- This Agreement and each of its provisions shall be binding on both parties from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024, except with the following re-openers:
 - 20.1.1 Each party shall have the annual right to reopen Salary and Benefits (Articles 5 and 15) and Calendar by giving written notice to the other party. Additionally, ASJTA and the District will have the annual option to reopen two (2) Articles of their individual choice unless it is a contract expiration year in which all Articles are open for negotiation.
 - 20.1.2 Re-openers shall be submitted jointly by the District and the Association no later than the week prior to the first Board of Education meeting in September of each year of this Agreement. The District shall post these proposals as a part of the meeting agenda and allow for public comments at the meeting. This will constitute proper public notice so that negotiations may commence beginning in October.
- The Association shall designate no more than four (4) representatives who shall each receive release time to attend negotiation sessions and impasse proceedings. The Association shall receive no more than four (4) days of release time for each of its four (4) members (16 days total) to prepare for negotiations. The Association agrees to reimburse the District for the cost of substitute teachers who are hired while the Association members receive release time for negotiation preparations.
- The District shall provide reasonable release time to unit members designated by the Association for the purpose of conducting negotiations.
- Negotiations shall take place at mutually agreeable times and places.
- 20.5 Any agreement reached between the parties shall be reduced to writing and signed by them.
- 20.6 Each page of all tentative agreements will be signed or initialed by the spokesperson(s) on each team.
- 20.7 All agreements are tentative until there is a final written agreement on the entire contract.
- 20.8 Each party agrees to support and recommend ratification of the final tentative agreement to the body they represent.
- The District shall provide the Association an electronic copy of this Agreement within fifteen (15) working days, or the earliest possible date not to exceed twenty-two (22) working days after ratification by both parties. The District will also post a copy of the agreement in its website in a format which permits individual employees to download copies. The District will refer new hires to its website (http://www.asjusd.org) for their review and downloading copies of the agreement as needed, in conjunction with business office process of their hire. An electronic copy in Microsoft Word format shall be provided to the Union president and lead negotiator.

Aromas-San Juan Unified School District 2023-24 Certificated Teacher Salary Schedule

	Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Steps	BA Intern	BA+30 Credential	BA+45 Credential	BA+60 Credential	BA+75 Credential
1	\$54,554	\$61,200	\$63,801	\$66,513	\$69,339
2	\$54,554	\$62,730	\$65,396	\$68,175	\$71,073
3	\$54,554	\$64,298	\$67,031	\$69,880	\$72,850
4	\$54,554	\$65,906	\$68,707	\$71,627	\$74,671
5	\$54,554	\$67,553	\$70,424	\$73,417	\$76,538
6	\$54,554	\$69,242	\$72,185	\$75,253	\$78,451
7	\$54,554	\$70,973	\$73,990	\$77,134	\$80,412
8	\$54,554	\$72,748	\$75,839	\$79,063	\$82,423
9	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$77,735	\$81,039	\$84,483
10	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$83,065	\$86,595
11	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$88,760
12	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$90,979
13	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$93,254
14	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$95,585
15	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$97,975
16	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$100,424
17	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$102,935
18	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$105,508
19	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$108,146
20	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$110,849
21	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$113,621
22	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$116,461
23	\$54,554	\$74,566	\$79,679	\$85,142	\$119,373

STIPENDS NOT INCLUDED ON STIPEND APPENDIX B:

Masters in subject areas with California Content Standards shall be defined as: Math, ELA, ELD, Career Tech ed, Computer Science, Health Education, History/Social Science, Model School Library, PE, Science, World Languages, and Visual and Performing Art: \$6,000.00 per year

Master's degree that does not qualify for the above: \$1,000.00 per year

CERTIFICATED HOURLY RATE: \$40.00

SUMMER SCHOOL HOURLY RATE: Unit members advance between steps based on the number of years they have worked in a summer school placement, specifically for ASJUSD.

Step 1: \$50.00

Step 2: \$51.75

Step 3: \$53.50

Step 4: \$55.25

Step 5: \$57.00

Step Placement: Unit members shall be placed on the step that each would advance to for the 2023-24 school year, except that all unit members who would have advanced to step 23 or higher shall all be placed on Step 23

Board Adopted: 6/7/2023 Effective 7/1/2023

AROMAS/SAN JUAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED SLP SALARY SCHEDULE 203 WORK DAYS 2023-24

Increase	9.14%				
STEP	BA Intern I	BA + 30 + Credential II	BA + 45 + Credential III	BA + 60 + Credential IV	BA + 75 + Credential V
1	59,805	62,006	64,210	66,413	68,613
2	59,805	64,952	67,161	69,369	71,581
3	59,805	64,952	67,161	69,369	71,581
4	59,805	64,952	67,161	69,369	71,581
5	59,805	67,572	69,080	70,562	72,104
6	59,805	71,100	72,611	74,122	75,639
7	59,805	74,628	76,143	77,651	79,158
8	59,805	78,155	79,671	81,189	82,691
9	59,805	81,690	83,193	84,712	86,223
10	59,805	81,690	86,729	88,240	89,752
11	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	93,277
12	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	98,079
13	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	100,850
14	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	100,850
15	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	102,867
16	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	102,867
17	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	104,924
18	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	104,924
19	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	107,023
20	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	107,023
21	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	109,163
22	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	109,163
23	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	111,346
24	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	111,346
25	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	113,573
26	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	113,573
27	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	115,844
28	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	115,844
29	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	118,160
30	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	118,160
31	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	120,524
32	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	120,524
33	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	122,934
34	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	122,934
35	59,805	81,690	86,729	91,782	125,394

STIPENDS NOT INCLUDED ON STIPEND APPENDIX B:

Masters in subject areas with California Content Standards shall be defined as: Math, ELA, ELD, Career Tech ed, Computer Science, Health Education, History/Social Science, Model School Library, PE, Science, World Languages, and Visual and Performing Art: \$6,000.00 per year

Master's degree that does not qualify for the above: \$1,000.00 per year

Board Approved 6/7/2023 Effective 7/1/2023

The Aromas/San Juan Teachers Association

APPENDIX B - STIPEND SCHEDULE EXTRA DUTY

Stipends paid in two equal installments: November and May			
ASSIGNMENT	STIPEND		
Varsity Head Coach (High School)	\$3,000 (15 coaches)		
Junior Varsity Coach/Varsity Assistant Coach (High School)	\$2,000 (5 coaches)		
Head Coach (Middle School)	\$2,000 (8 sports per school)		
Athletic Director (High School)	\$24,000 for 11 Months		
Athletic Director (Middle Schools)	\$4,500 (2 schools)		
Honors English (High School)	\$927 per semester		
Lead Teachers (High School)	.40 FTE minimum; assignment may be adjusted as needed to accommodate performance of duties		
Lead Teachers (TK-8)	\$3,605 per school year; may be split between two teachers		
Schools' Yearbook Advisor	\$1,500 High School\$750 Elementary		
Outdoor Science School, Tolerance Trip and Senior Grad Night	Teachers attending these events shall be compensated for their time beyond the 7.5 hour workday with another day's pay using the member's daily rate of pay for each night away from home.		
ASB/Activities Director (High School)	\$2,500* *Stipend only paid if ASB is not run through leadership section		
ASB/Activities Director (TK-8)	\$1,500		

Board Approved 6/7/2023; Effective 7/1/2023

Class Size	See Article 17.1.5
	Elementary: \$200 per trimester
	Elementary Combination Grade: \$200 per trimester
	Dual Immersion Stipend (teacher
	must have clear BCLAD): \$600 per trimester
	trimester
	See Article 17.1.6
	High School: \$300 per trimester
	See Article 17.2.1
	 Class Configuration: \$200 per trimester
DAD David	(\$500 manuscan (\$000 Anticals 0.00.7)
PAR Panel	\$500 per year (See Article 8.2.7)
Consulting Teacher	Referred: \$2,500 per year per assisted unit
	member
	Assisting a Probationary I/II: \$2,000 per year
Professional Certification Stipends	\$618 per year (See Article 5.5)
TK-12 Unit Members serving on School Site	School Site Council: \$250 per
Council and School Leadership Teams	member, three (3) teachers per site,
	one (1) classified per site
	 School Leadership Team: \$500 per member, three (3) maximum per site
	member, times (5) maximum per site
High School Unit Members	\$515 for six (6) high school duty points
High School Grad Ex	Full-time: \$1,600
	Part-time: \$800
	See Article 11.8 for additional information
Saturday School Scholar Teacher	Base summer school hourly rate for up to 5.5
	hours per day
Professional Development	\$600 for two (2) days for new teachers before
	school starts.
Staff is responsible for submitting their stipend	requests online to be approved by their
administrator and will then be forwarded to pay	

Staff is responsible for submitting their stipend requests online to be approved by their administrator and will then be forwarded to payroll. All stipend requests must be submitted no later than the last contractual day for payment. The district shall make this form available to teachers by the end of September

APPENDIX C - UNIT APPROVAL FORM

APPROVAL OF COLLEGE UNITS FOR SALARY ADVANCE

Please submit one copy of this form to the school Principal. After the Principal reviews the request, one copy of this form will be returned to you with the decision and one copy will be placed in your personnel file.

Employee Name:	Date:				
	PROPOSED COURSE				
Course #:Title:	Semester Units:				
College or University:					
Brief Description of Course:					
	REASON FOR UNITS	_			
Check One:					
Required course for adv	vanced degree				
Degree:	Major:				
Required course for Sta	ite credential				
Which credential:					
Other (please specify):					
SALARY ADVANCEMENT CREDIT IS NOT ACCEPTED FOR COURSEWORK PAID FOR BY THE DISTRICT.					
APPROVED: YES	NO				
APPROVED BY:DATE:					

Note: This approval is valid ONLY for the semester or quarter requested. If you wish to take the course described at a later date, a new approval form must be submitted.

APPENDIX D - INDIVIDUAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT DAY (PD) APPROVAL REQUEST (CERTIFICATED)

Requestor's Name:				
IPD Date:	Date Submitted for Approval:			
IPD Activity (Please provide flyers Attach any supporting documents to	s, brochures, etc. and any specific details and relevant information. o this request.):			
Estimated Travel Miles (if any):	Registration Fees (if any):			
Substitute Needed: Yes	No			
(It is the requestor's responsibility tapproved.)	to arrange for a sub through the automated system, once the IPD day			
☼ Approved	Not Approved			
If not approved, please provide ex	xplanation:			
Supervisor's Signature	Date			
Business Manager:	Superintendent:			
Approved Not Approved	☐ Approved ☐ Not Approved			
Signature	Signature			
Date	Date			

APPENDIX E - PROFESSIONAL PARTNERS

PROFESSIONAL PARTNERS PROGRAM AN ALTERNATIVE TO TRADITIONAL TEACHER EVALUATION

PROGRAM GOALS

The Strategic Plan of the District states that we are a community of learners in which everyone participates both as teachers and as learners and that we establish goals and accountability standards for students, staff, and programs, using a variety of means to assess success in meeting those goals and standards. As a District, we are committed to the ongoing improvement of our programs, and to the continued growth and development of our staff. For this reason, we have made extraordinary investments in staff development, and we have been particularly attentive to the teacher evaluation process.

The traditional Stull evaluation process, while often quite valuable, is a hierarchical model that is driven by administration. The Professional Partners Program is an attempt to develop an alternative to traditional evaluation that is self and peer driven. It is an attempt to develop reflective professional practices that lead to improved performance in the classroom and to the establishment of a true community of learners among staff members.

PROGRAM SUMMARY

The Professional Partners Program has three basic phases:

- 1. The establishment of annual goals.
- 2. A minimum of three peer observations including pre- and post-observation conferences.
- 3. A final conference and self-evaluation.

A peer and the Principal participate in the process.

ELIGIBILITY

In order to be eligible to participate in the Professional Partners Program as an alternative to the regular evaluation process, a teacher must:

- 1. Be a permanent employee of District
- 2. Have received satisfactory annual evaluations, as determined by the Principal, for the three preceding evaluation cycles.
- 3. Agree to participate in the Professional Partners Program and to meet all of the program requirements.
- 4. Agree to participate in two days of training to be scheduled prior to the commencement of the regular work year.

APPENDIX E - PROFESSIONAL PARTNERS CONTINUED

Please no	te the following in relation to eligibility:
	September 28: Schedule a minimum of three peer observations including pre- observation and post-observation conferences. Complete peer observation number one. Complete peer observation number two. Complete peer observation number three. Short written summary produced for each peer observation. Principal included in at least one peer observation cycle. Prior to April 15: All three observations completed.
FINAL SI	ELF-EVALUATION
including observation conference	han four weeks prior to the end of the school year, the teacher will write a self- evaluation, reflections on success in meeting program goals and learning that took place through the peer on process. This draft self-evaluation is submitted to the partner and the Principal. A se is held between the teacher, partner, and Principal to discuss the draft. A final draft is d by the teacher, signed by the Principal and partner, and placed in the teacher's permanent file.
=	April 30: Complete written self-evaluation and submit to Principal and partner. May 5: Conference with Principal and partner to discuss self-evaluation draft. May 8: Complete final self-evaluation, obtain Principal and partner signatures, and submit to personnel file.

OTHER NOTES

The Professional Partnership Program should be viewed as a pilot program. It will be reviewed and revised as we gain experience with the program. Until agreed otherwise, teachers who participate in the Professional Partners Program will participate in the regular evaluation process every fourth year.

APPENDIX F-TEACHER EVALUATION

	Iteri	im: Final:	
Evaluatee's Name:	Date:		
Site:	Grade/Subject:		
Credential:	Expiration Date:	Units:	
	Performance Areas		
Criteria and Related Indicators			
	 The progress of students toward the establishe achievement at each grade level in each area academic content standards as measured by st (Includes CSTP Standard V.) 	of study and, if applicable, towards the state adopte	
	All students demonstrate growth towards estab	lished standards.	
Exceeds Standard	Establishes and communicates learning goals for	or all students.	
Meets Standard	Collects and uses multiple sources of information	on to assess student learning.	
Needs Improvement	Involves and guides all students in assessing their own learning.		
Unsatisfactory	Uses results of assessments to guide instruction	n.	
	Communicates with students, families, and othe progress.	er appropriate audiences about student	
Comments:			
II.	The instructional techniques and strategies use		
	students in learning. (Includes CSTP Standard Draws on and values students' prior knowledge developmental learning needs to connect students.)	e, life experiences, interests, and	
Exceeds Standard	Uses a variety of instructional strategies, mate to students' diverse needs.	rials, resources and techniques to respond	
Meets Standard	Engages students in problem solving, critical the depth and meaning of the subject.	ninking, and other activities that reveal	
Needs Improvement	Establishes, articulates, and communicates lea	arning goals for all students.	
Unsatisfactory	Designs and sequences instructional activities	and materials for student learning.	
	Modifies instructional plans to adjust for stude	nt needs.	
Comments:			

Exceeds Standard	III.	The employee's knowledge, understanding, and organization of subject matter to maximize student learning and attain curricular objectives. (Includes CSTP Standard III.)
Meets Standard		 Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter, content, and student development.
Needs Improvement		 Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter.
Unsatisfactory		 Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas.
		 Develops student understanding through instructional strategies appropriate to subject matter and students.
		 Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to students.
Comments:		
	IV.	The creation and maintenance of an environment suitable for effective learning within the scope of the employee's responsibilities. (Includes CSTP Standard II.)
Exceeds Standard		 Creates a physical environment that supports all students in learning.
Meets Standard		 Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect.
		 Promotes social development and responsibility.
Needs Improvement		 Establishes and maintains standards of student behavior.
Unsatisfactory		 Plans and implements classroom procedures and routines that support student learning.
		 Uses instructional time effectively.
Comments:		
	٧.	The employee's performance of non-instructional duties and
Exceeds Standard		responsibilities including those which are supervisory/advisory and
Meets Standard		prescribed by the Board of Education in accordance with the Agreement between the District and the Association.
Needs Improvement		
Unsatisfactory		 Fulfills responsibilities as a member of a professional community.
Comments:		

VI.	CSTP Standard VI.)
	Reflects onteachingpractices andplansprofessional development
Exceeds StandardMeets Standard	 Establishes professional goals and pursues opportunities to grow professionally.
Needs Improvement	Works with communkies, families, and colleagues to improve professionally.
_	Balances professional responsibilities and maintains motivation.
Comments:	
Ove1all Comments and Com	mendations:
Ove1all Comments	and Recommendations:

Final Rating: ThiS<finalfa $\$ ng ol evalion c... at egOJies as sessed in this evaluation is: Meei:s s-:andatd Eltcee-ds Standard _Needs Improvement IJnsa(isfactorg An uns.<ri>isfactory ranginany one of the first four categories wireS\11tinanoo.oerall final rating of e her Needs mprowmeMor Unsatisfactory. Teacher will be referred to Peer Assistance and Rev ew (PAR) Yes 1\lo A copy of this document will bE>fle-dinyour personnelfile. You are entille-dto review and comment on this documefit .and to have your own wruen comments attached. Any such written comments should be submitted to the Personnel Offce within fiteen (15) wosk.ingdays of the following date. Administrator's Signature This evaluation has been discussed withme. Signing this form does not nee@sar ly mean that lagree with the ratings.

Date

Teacher's Sgnature

These C:theria ate based on S(a(ehw (Education Code Set ons 4-4SS044SS5) and the Calfornia Standards foe the Te.ach r Profession (CSTP). The St. and. ards address th following areas: 1. Engaging and Supporting A Studintsh Learning, II Creating and Maintaining Effictive Environments, II Undirst. and ing. and Organizing Subject Matter, IV. Planning Instruction and Osigning Learning Experiences. V. Assigns Student learning, VL CSTP ate noted to patenthes s. Pease consult the CSTP for furth reaboration in each to picare.

APPENDIX G - CALIFORNIA STANDARDS FOR THE TEACHING PROFESSION

STANDARDONE:

ENGAGING & SUPPORTING ALL STUDENTS IN LEARNING

- 1.1 Connecting students' prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with learning goals
- 1.2 Using a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respond to students' diverse needs
- 1.3 Facilitating learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice
- 1.4 Engaging students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful
- 1.5 Promoting self-directed, reflective learning for all students

STANDARDTWO:

CREATING & MAINTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS FOR STUDENT LEARNING

- 2.1 Creating a physical environment that engages all students
- 2.2 Establishing a climate that promotes fairness and respect
- 2.3 Promoting social development and group responsibility
- 2.4 Establishing and maintaining standards for student behavior
- 2.5 Planning and implementing classroom procedures and routines that support student learning
- 2.6 Using instructional time effectively

STANDARDTHREE: UNDERSTANDING & ORGANIZING SUBJECT

MATTER FOR STUDENT LEARNING

- 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter content and student development
- 3.2 Organizing curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter
- 3.3 Interrelating ideas and information within and across subject matter areas
- 3.4 Developing student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter
- 3.5 Using materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to students

STANDARDFOUR:

PLANNING INSTRUCTION & DESIGNING LEARNING EXPERIENCES FOR ALL STUDENTS

- 4.1 Drawing on and valuing students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning needs
- 4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for student learning
- 4.3 Developing and sequencing instructional activities and materials for student learning
- 4.4 Designing short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning
- 4.5 Modifying instructional plans to adjust for student needs

STANDARD FIVE: ASSESSING STUDENT LEARNING

- 5.1 Establishing and communicating learning goals for all students
- 5.2 Collecting and using multiple sources of information to assess student learning
- 5.3 Involving and guiding all students in assessing their own learning
- 5.4 Using the results of assessments to guide instruction
- 5.5 Communicating with students, families, and other audiences about student progress

STANDARD SIX: DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR

- 6.1 Reflecting on teaching practice and planning professional development
- 6.2 Establishing professional goals and pursuing opportunities to grow professionally
- 6.3 Working with communities to improve professional practice
- 6.4 Working with families to improve professional practice
- 6.5 Working with colleagues to improve professional practice

APPENDIX H - DISTRICT OWNED VEHICLES

Business and Non-instructional Operations AR 3542.1(a)

EMPLOYEE USE OF DISTRICT-OWNED VEHICLE

Employees shall participate in the district's Safe Driver Program prior to authorization to use any vehicle for district business. The district reserves the right to refuse an employee authorization to operate a vehicle on district business.

District Driver Procedure

- 1. All employees who may be required to drive a district-owned vehicle while on district business shall be required to watch a safe driver film.
- 2. The employee shall submit to the Transportation Office the following:
 - a. Copy of California driver's license;
 - b. DMV H-6 printout.
- 3. The Transportation Office will conduct annual employee driver history inspections through the Department of Motor Vehicles. Each time a driver is convicted of a moving traffic law violation, the court notifies the Department of Motor Vehicles. A record of the conviction is placed in the driver's license file. Convictions are counted as follows:
 - a. When a traffic conviction shows that a person drives a motor vehicle unsafely on a highway, it counts as one point towards determination of a negligent driver.
 - b. Two points are charged if the driver is convicted of:
 - (1) Reckless driving
 - (2) Hitting an unattended vehicle without notifying the owner
 - (3) Causing property damage, injury, or death by hit-and-run driving
 - (4) Manslaughter involving a vehicle
 - (5) Causing injury or death with a vehicle while evading a peace officer
 - (6) Driving on the wrong side of a divided highway
 - (7) Speed contest or exhibition of speed
 - (8) Illegal transport of explosives
 - (9) Driving under the influence of liquor and/or any drug

AR 3542.1(b)

EMPLOYEE USE OF DISTRICT-OWNED VEHICLE (continued)

c. An accident is normally counted as one point.

For district purposes, a driver is considered a negligent operator of a motor vehicle when the employee's driving record shows the following point count:

2 points in a 12-month period 3 points in a 24-month period 4 points in a 36-month period

- 4. The district reserves the right to refuse an employee authorization to operate a district vehicle if the individual is determined to be a negligent operator in accordance with No. 3 above or fails to maintain a valid California Class A, B or C driver's license.
- 5. The Transportation Office shall maintain a list of approve employees who are authorized to operate district vehicles.
- 6. A "district vehicle" is defined as "a motor vehicle owned by the district used for the purpose of moving or propelling any person or property upon a highway, and not to exceed more than 10 passengers including the driver, no matter what size the vehicle is." If more than 10 passengers are to be carried, they must be in a school bus or a student pupil activity bus as defined in the Vehicle Code.

Regulation AROMAS-SAN JUAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Approved: March 3, 2004

APPENDIX I – ADVANCED APPROVAL FORM

Certificated Request for Leave

Name		Total Day(s) Requested:		
Leave From:		To:		
Che	ck reason below:			
	Illness, Injury, or Medical Appointment Personal Necessity (Not more than seven (7) days per school yet) Bereavement Relationship to Deceased Other – Please explain	Business/Conference		
Reaso	Approved Not Approved Reason for not approving leave:			
Teach	Teacher Signature Date			
Principal Signature Superi		perintendentSignature		
Date	Da	te		

APPENDIX J - CERTIFICATED GRIEVANCE FORM

Name of Grievant:		
School or Department:		
Date Filed:		
Date grievance occurred:		
2. Specific section of contract allegedly v	violated:	
2. Specific decitors of contract anegotify v	iolatoa.	
3. Provide specific details concerning the circumstances):	grievance: (Include names, dates, and	
4. Describe adverse effect the alleged vic	olation(s) had on grievant:	
5. Remedy desired:		
Conferee (if any)	Signature of Grievant	

APPENDIX K - CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK DONATION FORM

I,(PRINT NAME)	choose to participate in the Catastrophic
Leave Bank as defined in the contract in section	13.3.
I understand that the use of the Catastrophic Le members who have made a donation of at least	ave Bank shall only be available to those eligible one day yearly.
I understand that once I elect to participate in the year will be automatically added to the Bank from	•
which I will not be required to donate more, but	ually until the total days in the Bank donated by Im (as defined in contract section 13.3.18), after will still be eligible to draw days from the bank. I total days in the Bank drop below the maximum.
	ship, a written notice of cancelation must be filed p in the program means I will not be able to get
I understand that once days are donated, it beco Bank and is irrevocable.	omes the property of the Catastrophic Leave
For more information, please refer to Article 13 between the Aromas-San Juan Unified School I Association.	•
Signature	Date
SUBMIT TO THE HUMAN RESOUF	RCES DEPARTMENT BY <u>October 1st.</u>

APPENDIX L - CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK REQUEST FOR WITHDRAWAL FORM

I, or a member of my family, (see definition Article 13.3) have sustained a catastrophic illness, injury or condition and request assistance from the Catastrophic Leave Bank.

l.		e answer the following questions so that the Catastrophic Leave Bank Committee onsider your application.				
	a.	Full time employeePart-tir	ne employee.			
	b.	My last day of work was/will be				
	C.	All accumulated sick leave is or will be exhauste	ed by approximate	ely		
	d.	Have you applied for any additional leaves unde apply.				
	e.	. Anticipated date of return to work:				
II.	Have	you applied for or are you receiving benefits from	any of the follow	ving?		
	a.	State Disability Insurance	Υ	N		
	b.	Social Security Disability Insurance	Υ	N		
	C.	Any Other Disability Insurance or Payments	_ Y	N		
III.		n medical verification of the condition described all Also include why you feel this situation qualifies t				
Name	:	Address:				
Phone	e Numb	er:Signature:				
		When complete, seal application in an envelope labeled CONFID Human Resource Department Catastrophic Leave Bank Committee Aromas-San Juan Unified School District Off				

APPENDIX M - CLASSROOM OBSERVATION REPORT

Aromas-San Juan Unified School District Administrative Classroom Observation Report

Name: Site	:				
Date:Time	: In:		Out:		
Scheduled:Unschedu	led:				
Assignment:					
Lesson Topic:					
Content Standard:					
I. The progress of students toward the establishe level in each area of study and if applicable towareasured by state adopted criteria referenced a	ards the state	e adopted a s. (Includes	academic con SCTP Stand	tent standards a	
				Unsatisfactor	
Establishes and communicates learning goals for all students.					
Involves and guides all students in assessing their own learning.					
Uses results of assessments to guide instruction.					
ll. The instructional techniques and strategies use in learning. (Includes CSTP Standard 1 and Star		_		port all student:	Not
				Unsatisfactor	
Draws on and values students' prior knowledge, life experiences, interests, and developmental learning needs to connect students to learning.					
Uses a variety of instructional strategies, materials, resources, and techniques to respond to students' diverse needs.					
Engages students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that reveal depth and meaning of the subject.					
Designs and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning.					
Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs					
Observer Comments:					

	Exceeds Standard:		Needs Improvemen	Unsatisfactor	Not Obsert
Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter, content, an student development.	d d				
Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter.					
Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas.					
Develops student understanding through instructional strategies appropriate to subject matter and students.					
Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matters accessible to students.					
Observer Comments:					
IV. The creation and maintenance of an environme responsibilities. (Includes CSTP Standard II.)	nt suitable fo	or effective	learning withi	in the scope of t	he emplo
	Exceeds Standard:		Needs Improvemen	Unsatisfactor	Not Obsert
Uses instructional time effectively.					
Creates a physical environment that supports all studen in learning.	ts				
in learning.					
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respec					
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility.	ot.				
Creates a physical environment that supports all studen in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavior Plans and implements classroom procedures and routing that support student learning.	et. or.				
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavior	et. or.				
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavion Plans and implements classroom procedures and routing that support student learning.	et. or.				
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavion Plans and implements classroom procedures and routing that support student learning.	et. or.				
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavior Plans and implements classroom procedures and routing that support student learning. Observer Comments:	et. or.				
in learning. Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect Promotes social development and responsibility. Establishes and maintains standards of student behavior Plans and implements classroom procedures and routing that support student learning. Observer Comments:	et. or.				

Date of Post Observation Conference:		
A copy of this document will be filed in your personne to have your own written comments attached. Any s within fifteen (15) working days of the post observation	uch written comments should be submitted (
Administrator's Signature	Date	
This observation report has been discussed with me that will be included on the interim and/or final evalua agree with the ratings.		•
Teacher's Signature	Date	

These criteria are based on state law (Education Code Sections 44660-44665) and the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP). The Standards address the following areas: 1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning, II. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments, III. Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter, IV. Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences, V. Assessing Student Learning, VI. Developing as a Professional Educator. The CSTP are included as Appendix H in Collective Bargaining Agreement. Referenced to the CSTP are noted in parentheses. Please consult the CSTP for further elaboration in each topic area.